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DeKalb County, Georgia
1300 Commerce Drive, Decatur, Georgia 30030
(404) 371-2741 (404) 371-2750 FAX

June 23, 2006

Chief Executive Officer and Members
DeKalb County Board of Commissioners
DeKalb County, Georgia

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of DeKalb County, Georgia, (the County) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 is
submitted herewith. This report is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Act providing uniform standards for audits of municipalities and
counties within the State of Georgia, approved April 21, 1967 (Ga. Laws 1967, p. 883) as amended by an Act approved March 28, 1968 (Ga. Laws 1968,
p. 464).

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the County. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for
the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the County has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from
loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the County’s financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the County’s comprehensive framework
of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial statement is complete and reliable in all material
respects.

The County’s financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the County for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, are free of material misstatement.
The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent
auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the County’s financial statements for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the County was part of a broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special
needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair
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presentation of the financial staternents, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special
emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the County’s
separately issued Single Audit Report.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.
The County’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

DeKalb County is an urban county providing a full range of services to 700,500 citizens. Included in these services are traditional county functions such
as road maintenance and court-related activities, as well as a number of municipal services such as police, fire, solid waste collection and disposal, and
water and sewer. There are nine incorporated municipalities within the County, including a portion of the City of Atlanta. Those municipalities
comprise approximately 13% of the total population of the County, and provide services to their citizens in varying degrees. Selected County
demographic information is provided in the statistical section of this report.

A 1981 Act of the General Assembly of Georgia provides for distinct executive and legislative branches of County government. The executive branch is
headed by the elective position of Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The legislative branch is made up of the Board of Commissioners, composed of seven
members, which elects from its membership a Presiding Officer and Deputy Presiding Officer. The CEO may preside at Board meetings and may vote in
the event of a tie vote, except the CEQ does not preside nor vote on zoning matters. The CEO has veto power, which may be overridden by a two-thirds
majority vote of the Board of Commissioners. The Board of Commissioners has the power and authority to fix and establish, by appropriate resolution
or ordinance (entered on its minutes), policies, rules and regulations governing all matters reserved to its jurisdiction. The CEO has exclusive power to
supervise, direct and control the administration of the County government.

The financial statements, schedules, and statistical tables included in this report pertain to all functions and funds directly under the control of the DeKalb
County CEO and Board of Commissioners. Also included are trust and agency funds administered and controlled by various elected or appointed
officials, which are not reported upon by any other entity. The Board of Health and the Public Library are included as component units of the County.
These component units are partially funded by the County, and derive significant funding from Federal and State grants and user fees. The Board of
Health provides a broad range of physical health services, and the Public Library provides a wide range of information services. Both units ended the
year in good financial positions.

Certain other entities are not included within the scope of this report. These exclusions consist of the DeKalb County Board of Education, the Fulton-
DeKalb Hospital Authority, the DeKalb Board of Family and Children Services, the DeKalb Community Service Board, the DeKalb Housing Authority
and the Development Authority of DeKalb County. These entities have not met the established criteria for inclusion in this report. However, any
amounts appropriated for disbursement to these entities as well as any amounts for which the County has contractual liability have been included in the
County's financial statements. The Fulton-DeKalb Hospital Authority is considered a joint venture between DeKalb County and Fulton County, Georgia,
and summary financial information is provided in the notes to the financial statements.

Annual budgets are adopted by the Board of Commissioners each year for the General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds. The level of control
(the level at which expenditures may not exceed appropriations) for each annual budget is the department level within each fund. Revenue and



appropriation adjustments may be made, when the Board of Commissioners approves property tax millage rates. Supplemental allocations can also be
made by the Board of Commissioners from the County's General Fund contingency account to fund unforeseen expenditures within the County's
Governmental Funds' departments. Individual departments are charged with operating within the scope of their allocated budget and intra-departmental
transfers must be submitted for approval by the Finance Department and/or the Chief Executive Officer.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

DeKalb County's overall financial position remains favorable. At the end of 2005, the County’s sales tax receipts increased by 7.2% compared to 2004,
The number of new construction permits increased with over $1,581,513,000 in construction value on building permits issued. The County’s annual
unemployment rate of 6.3% for 2005 compared to the rate in Georgia of 5.3% is a result of several major corporate restructurings in the metropolitan
area. In accordance with the Homestead Option Sales Tax, the County has granted a homestead exemption on operating levies of 59.07% and 54.64% in
2004 and 2005, respectively. As a result of this exemption and other favorable conditions, the number of homestead properties in the County has
increased from 125,000 in 1999 to 147,447 in 2005. Revenue from business related fees and taxes (hotel/motel, alcoholic beverage, business licenses
and building permits) decreased slightly by $12,700 during 2005 compared to 2004.

DeKalb County is a mature County, which is mostly developed in many areas. The Atlanta metropolitan area, of which DeKalb is a part, serves as a
center for banking, communications, transportation, accounting, insurance, and other services.

For 2005, there was an increase in the tax-supported budgets of 4.8%. The Fund Balance at year-end was $32 million in the General Fund, a $10.5
million increase from the previous year. '

In December 2004, the DeKalb Public Safety and Judicial Facilities Authority issued $50 million in bonds for the purposes of acquiring, constructing and
equipping new headquarters for Police Services and Fire & Rescue Services, as well as several new Police precincts and Fire & Rescue stations and
related maintenance facilities. The DeKalb Building Authority issued $35,670,000 in July 2005 to construct a new Juvenile Justice Center. There are
lease agreements between the County and these Authorities. In November 2005, the County opened a 40,000 square foot multi-purpose Senior Center to
serve a growing component of the population.

In past years DeKalb relied heavily on the property tax as a primary revenue source as it did not have a local option sales tax. On March 18, 1997, the
voters of the County approved a permanent one-percent Homestead Option Sales Tax, to be effective July 1, 1997. In 2005, 80% of this sales tax was
used to reduce property taxes (in the form of an increased homestead exemption) collected for County operations (including General Government, Fire
Protection, Hospital Services and Special District Services) from homestead properties. $16.75 million was dedicated to capital outlay (infrastructure)
projects from HOST funds in 2005.

Cash management policies and practices.
The County maintains a pooled cash and investments account for most County funds. The County seeks to obtain market rates of return on its
investments, consistent with constraints imposed by its safety objectives, cash flow considerations, and Georgia state laws. Safety of principal is the

foremost objective. Competitive bids are required on all County investments.

Risk Management and Employee Services
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DeKalb County has a Risk Management and Employee Services Division within its Finance Department. The focus of this office is to minimize loss to
the County through data analysis and loss prevention programs, and to administer the County's surety, liability, and employee group insurance programs
including workers’ compensation. Although the number of workers’ compensation claims changed slightly from 1,110 in 2004 to 1,104 in 2005, the lost
work days per 1,000 employees remains below national levels.

Pension and other post employment benefits.

The County sponsors a single-employer two-tiered defined benefit pension plan for all County employees. Each year, an independent actuary engaged by
the Pension Board calculates the amount of the annual contribution that the County must make to the pension plan to ensure that the plan will be able to
fully meet its obligations to retired employees on a timely basis. As of April 1, 2005, the date of the last actuarial report, the County’s pension plan had
funded 99.04% of the actuarial accrued liability of the plan. Effective September 1, 2005, new employees will be covered by pension benefits that have
been scaled back. Contribution rates from the employer and employees have been increased starting 2004 to maintain adequate funding levels.

The County currently offers to provide post employment health and life insurance benefits for all retirees. These benefits are financed on a pay-as-you-go
basis. As of December 31, 2005, GAAP does not require governments to report a liability in the financial statements in connection with an employer’s
obligation to provide these benefits.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to DeKalb County for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004. This was the 27th
consecutive year that the government has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet
the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgments

The preparation of this report has been accomplished through the efficient and dedicated efforts of the entire staff of the Finance Department, particularly
the Accounting Services Division, and through the cooperation of the various elected officials. The County has upgraded their Financial Management
Information System to state of the art technology, integrated with numerous other systems. This was performed by the dedication of a significant number
of staff. I wish to express my sincere appreciation to everyone who conffibuted to the implementation, as well as the preparation of this report.
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KPMG LLP
Suite 2000
303 Peachtree Street, NE

Atlanta, GA 30308 .
Independent Auditers’ Report

Chief Executive Officer and Honorable Members
of the Board of Commissioners
DeKalb County, Georgia:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, cach major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of DeKalb County, Georgia {the County) as of and for the vear ended December 31. 2003, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents, These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the County. Our responsibility s Lo express opinions on these financial statements based on
our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the DeKalb County Board of Health, which represent 80% and 70%, respectively, of the assets and revenue of the aggregate discretely
presented component units, Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
the DeKalb County Board of Health, is based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over tinancial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal contro! over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate diseretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of DeKalb County, Georgia
as of December 31, 2005, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, Special Tax
District — Designated Services Fund and the Special Tax District = Unincorporated Fund for the year then ended in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting, principles.

As discussed in note 1(c), the County adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 40, Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures, during 2005.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 23, 2006 on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management's discussion and analysis, the schedule of funding progress, and the schedule of employer contributions on pages F2 through F11 and page F30, respectively, are not a required part
of the basic financial statements, but is supplementary information required by U.S generally accepted accounting principles. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally
of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on
it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that coliectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund financiat
statements, and introductory and statistical sections listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
combining nonmajor fund financial statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial siatements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic

financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

June 23, 2006

EPMG LLP, a LS. imued atlity partnership, s the U S
membe: firrn af KPMG IMernatianal. @ Swass caoparaive.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of DeKalb County (County), we offer readers of the County’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the County for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $1,734,707,000 (net assets). Of this amount, $150,215,000 (unrestricted
net assets) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The County’s total net assets increased by $77.945,000 during 2005. $60,367,000 of the increase was due to governmental activities with the business-
type funds experiencing an increase of $17,578,000.

As of the close of the fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $263,319,000 an increase of $56,625,000
in comparison with the previous year.

At the close of the fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $23,893,000, or 10.9% of total general fund expenditures.

The County’s total debt increased by $18,060,000 (5.6%) during the current fiscal year. In July of 2005, the County entered into a supplemental lease
agreement with the DeKalb Building Authority to construct and equip a Juvenile Justice Center totaling $35,670,000. This was offset by bond
retirement.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial statements. The County’s basic financial statements
comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements,

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the County’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets.
Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net
assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-fype activities). The governmental activities of the County include general government, public safety, civil and criminal court system,
planning. public works. community development, parks and recreation, health and welfare, and other miscellaneous activities. The business-type



activities of the County include water and sewerage, sanitation, DeKalb-Peachtree Airport, and the stormwater utility program.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the County itself (known as the primary government), but also a legally separate Board of
Health and the Public Library Board for which the County is financially accountable. Financial information for these component units 1s reported
separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages F12-F13 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. The County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may
be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it 1s useful to compare the information
presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial staternents. By doing
so0, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet
and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County maintains forty individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the special tax district designated services
fund and the special tax district unincorporated fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other thirty-seven funds are combined into a
single aggregated presentation.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages F14-F20 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The County maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewerage system
fund, sanitation fund, DeKalb Peachtree Airport fund, and stormwater utility fund. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate
and allocate costs internally among the County’s various functions. The County uses internal service funds to account for its vehicle maintenance fund,
vehicle replacement fund, and risk management fund. Because the risk management fund predominantly benefits governmental activities rather than
business-type functions, it has been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Because the vehicle
maintenance fund and vehicle replacement fund predominantly benefit business-type functions rather than governmental, they have been inciuded within
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial
statements provide separate information for the water and sewerage system fund and the sanitation fund. The DeKalb Peachtree Airport fund and
stormwater utility fund are combined into a single aggregated presentation. Conversely, all three internal service funds are combined into a single
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aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages F21-F23 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not
reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own programs. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprictary funds. The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages
F24-F25 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages F28-F49 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the County, assets exceeded
liabilities by $1,734,707,000 at the close of the fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the County’s net assets (85 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, equipment,
etc.), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilties,



DeKalb County’s Net Assets
December 31, 2005 and 2004
(In thousands of dollars)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Current and other assets $354,990 $289,508 $243,712 $267.741 $598,702 $557,249
Capital assets 977,351 940,339 1,180,471 1,145,791 2,157 822 2,086,130
Total assets 1,332,341 1,229,847 1,424,183 1,413,632 2,756,524 2,643,379
Long-term liabilities 380,607 355,413 502,152 512,032 882,759 867,445
Other liabilities 92,800 75,867 46,258 43,305 139,058 119,172
Total liabilities 473,407 431,280 548,410 555,337 1,021,817 986,617
Net assets:
Capital assets, net of related debt 762,138 723,385 720,427 695,273 1,482,565 1,418,658
Restricted 58,419 41,118 43,508 58,580 101,827 99,608
Unrestricted 38,377 34,064 111,838 104,342 150,215 138,406
Total net assets $858,934 $798,567 $875,773 $858,195 $1,734,707 $1,656,762

An additional portion of the County’s net assets (6 percent) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The
remaining balance of unrestricted net assets ($150,215,000) may be used to meet the governments’ ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the County is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both for the government as a
whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.

The government’s net assets increased by $77,945,000 during the current fiscal year. Governmental activities had an increase of $60,367,000 while
business-type activities increased by $17,578,000.

The most significant changes between 2004 and 2005 in both governmental activities and business-type activities relate to additions to capital assets and
an increase in debt predominately related to those capital assets. See more explanation of the capital asset and long-term debt activity in later sections of
this analysis.
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DeKalb County’s Changes in Net Assets
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004
(In thousands of dollars)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $86,658 594 421 $200,169 $193,626 $286,827 $288,047
Operating grants and contributions 12,714 17,901 - - 12,714 17,901
Capital grants and contributions 37,276 28,250 21,330 17,875 58,606 46,125
General revenues:
Property taxes 231,518 209,783 - - 231,516 209,783
Sales taxes 91,488 85,365 - - 91,488 85,365
Other taxes 78,919 77,728 - - 78,919 77.728
Grants not restricted to specific programs 27,930 21,439 - - 27,930 6,868
Other 23,997 21,139 4,526 2,286 28,523 23,425
Total revenues 580,498 556,026 226,025 213,787 818,523 769,813
Expenses:
General government 64,812 66,013 - - 64,812 66,013
Public safety 167,085 166,585 - - 167,085 166,585
Civil and criminal court system 124,713 123,479 - - 124,713 123,479
Planning 1,703 1,686 - - 1,703 1,686
Public works 60,965 63,510 - - 60,965 63,510
Community deveiopment 13,559 13,323 - - 13,558 13,323
Parks and recreation 23,213 23,306 - - 23,213 23,306
Library 12,054 11,699 - - 12,054 11,699
Health and welfare 34,728 35,118 - - 34,728 35,118
Misceilaneous 22,308 16,984 - - 22,306 16,984
Interest on long-term debt 14,741 16,205 - - 14,741 16,205
Water - - 55,269 53,187 55,269 53,187
Sewer - - 70,343 62,437 70,343 62,437
Stormwater Utility - - 13,319 5,038 13,319 5,038
Sanitation - - 56,783 44 037 56,783 44 037
Airport - - 2,985 2,815 2,985 2,815
Total expenses 539,879 537,908 198,699 167,514 738,578 705,422
Increase in net assets before transfers 50,619 18,118 27,326 46,273 77,945 64,391
Transfers 9,748 695 (9.748) (695) - -
Increase in net assets 60,367 18,813 17,578 45,578 77,945 64,391
Net assets-beginning 798,567 779,754 858,195 812,617 1,656,762 1,582,371
Net assets-ending $858,934 $798,567 $875,773 $858,195 $1,734,707 $1,656,762




Analysis of governmental activities.

Net assets of the governmental activities of the County increased by $60,367,000 in 2005. Property taxes accounted for 39% of the governmental
activities revenues, sales taxes accounted for 15%, and charges for services accounted for an additional 15%. Public safety expenses accounted for 31%
of governmental activities expenses and were used for police, fire, and rescue services. The civil and criminal court system accounted for an additional
23% of the total expenses for governmental activities. General government expenses, which represented 12% of the total expenses for governmental
activities, included the general administration of the County such as management of finances, information systems, human resources, and facilities
management, as well as the executive and legislative functions of County government. Public works, which inciudes the management of roads and
transportation networks of the County, accounted for 11% of the total expenses of the governmental activities.

Charges for services decreased in the areas of emergency management services and tax commissioner fees. Property taxes increased 10.4% due to an
increase in the overall digest of 6 percent and a lower homestead exemption.

Analysis of business-type activities.

Charges for services accounted for §9% of business-type activities revenues. Water expenses accounted for 28% of business-type activities expenses,
sewer expenses accounted for 35%, sanitation services accounted for 29%, the Stormwater Utility program incurred expenses in 2005 for 7%, and the
Peachtree-DeKalb Airport accounted for 1% of expenses.

Sanitation expenses increased due to capital costs associated with the operation of the landfill and expansion of the new roll-off service. A residential
recycling program was initiated in 2005.

Water & sewer metered rates were increased by 22 percent effective January 2005, but remain the lowest fees in the metropolitan area. Rates were last
increased in 2002, and this recent increase supports a significant capital improvements program for the Water & Sewer Department. Operating expenses
increased due to personnel expenses and cost of contracted services for expanded compliance inspections and rehabilitation of sewers.

The County adopted a Stormwater Utility Program and fee in December 2002. This program has begun to address the County’s needs in the area of
stormwater collection and treatment. The fee was first collected on the 2004 tax bitl. Capital projects were designed and constructed starting in 2005.

Analysis of the County’s Funds.
Governmental Funds

As noted earlier, the focus of the County’s governmental fund statements is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
resources available to spend. In its general and special revenue funds, the County reported combined ending fund balances of $68,557,000, an increase
of $20,926,000 over the prior year. Qf this total fund balance for general and special revenue funds, $55,924,000 is unreserved. Additionally, the
governmental funds include the debt service and capital project funds with a total fund balance of $194,762,000 which will be spent on outstanding debt
and capital projects of the County.

At the end of the year, fund balance in the General Fund was $31,933,000, representing an increase of $10,532,000 from the fund balance in the prior year.
The increase resulted from a reduction in expenditures and increased sales tax and property tax receipts. The fund balance of the Special Tax District -
Designated Services Fund at year-end was $9.845,000, which represented an increase of $1,492,000 from the prior year and resulted from an increase in
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transfers from the Special Tax District — Unincorporated Fund. The Special Tax District — Unincorporated Fund had a decrease in fund balance of
$1,997,000 from the prior year to end the year with a deficit of $954,000. The decrease in fund balance was result of a higher transfer to the Special Tax
District - Designated Services Fund

Proprietary Funds

The County’s proprietary funds report the activities of the water and sewer, sanitation, airport and stormwater utility services within the County and report
the same level of activity, with an overall increase in net assets of $22,350,000, as the business-type activities described earlier only in greater detail. The
increase In net assets was predominately in the Water & Sewerage System, which increased its net assets by $18,347,000. The increase resulted from
revenues that were generated by development fees and infrastructure contributions from developers of $5.7 million. The Sanitation Fund’s net assets
increased by $2,968.000, as revenues exceeded expenditures for the year. Revenue remained flat with expenses, primarily operating charges, increasing
29%. The Stormwater Utility Fund’s assets declined $5,854,600 after a transfer of $9,748,000 to the Governmental Capital Improvement Program Fund to
reimburse for expenses related to construction of drainage facilities. The increase in assets gained by the DeKalb Peachtree Airport Fund resulted from
FAA grants of $2,614,000 and the sale of surplus real property.

Each of the funds has charges for its services as the major source of revenue within the fund with the expenses being predominately for salaries, employee
benefits, and operating services and charges. Additionaily, the Water and Sewerage System has significant expenses for interest on its iong-term bonds
and for depreciation of the capital assets of the system.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Sales tax receipts increased 7.2%. Property taxes increased 10% in the General Fund in 2005 as a result of an increase in the overall digest and a lower
homestead exemption. Investment income increased as interest rates steadily increased throughout the year. There were no significant changes between
the original and final amended budgets. Actual results differed from the amended budget due to the following reasons. Expenses exceeded the budgeted
amounts for only one department: Law Department relating to outside attorney fees for litigation.

Capital Assets

The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of year-end, amounts to $2,157,822,000 (net of accumulated
depreciation). The investment in capital assets includes land, land improvements, buildings, plants, infrastructure, vehicles and portable equipment, other
equipment, leaseholds, and construction in progress. The County continued to purchase fand in 2005 under the Greenspace Program. Infrastructure assets
mncreased by $12 million relating to roads, sidewalks and drainage improvements.

The Water & Sewer System completed the $835 million reservoir project in 2005 giving the county a raw water storage capacity of 1 billion gallons. The
system 1s also nearing completion of the water treatment plant vaiued at $155 million. Improvements to the landfill have also been undertaken. Readers
should refer to note 7 of the financial statements for more information on capital asset activity.



Capital asset balances at year-end are as follows:

Capital Assets
December 31, 2005 and 2004
{(In thousands of dollars, net of depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Land $207.168 $201,515 $41,672 $41,669 $248,840 $243,185
L.and improvements 14,860 15,443 126,297 42 572 141,157 58,015
Buildings 229,675 233,700 4,991 5,323 234,666 238,024
Plants - - 98,165 101,310 98,165 101,310
Infrastructure 416,636 404,542 498,107 431,093 914,743 835,635
Vehicles and portable
equipment - - 34,003 37,668 34,003 37,668
Other equipment 13,343 19,574 41,607 41,841 54,950 61,415
Leaseholds - - 145,367 148,843 145,367 148,843
Construction in progress 95,669 65,563 190,262 295,472 285,931 361,035
Total $977,351 $940,337 $1,180,471 $1,145,791 $2,157,822 $2,086,130
Debt Administration
DeKalb County's financial condition is demonstrated by the current ratings of its bonds as of year-end:
Moody's Investors Standard
Service and Poors
General Obligation Aaa AA*
Refunded General Obligation Aaa AAA
Water and Sewerage System Revenue Aa2 AA
Refunded Water and Sewerage Revenue Aaa AAA
Certificates of Participation Aal AA

*Standard & Poor’s upgraded the County’s General Obligation debt to AAA in early 2006.
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Outstanding Debt at Year End
{In thousands of dollars)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
General obligation bonds $218,865 $234,500 - - $218,865 $234,500
Certificates of participation 24,040 24 525 - - 24,040 24,525
Revenue bonds 98,600 64,420 $490,900 $497 815 589,500 562,235
Total $341,505 $323,445 $490,900 $497 815 $832,405 $821,260

Since 2001, the County’s General Obligation debt has been rated by Moody’s as Aaa. Standard & Poor’s upgraded the County’s General Obligation
debt to AAA in 2006.

On a budget basis, $15,635,000 of general obligation bonds were retired during the year. The County's gross principal amount, less debt retirement
funds available on general obligation debt at year-end was $203,187,000. The constitutional debt limit for general obligation bonds is 10% of the

- assessed value of taxable property within the County. Based on current gross assessed property values of $23,540,000,000 the County's net outstanding
debt of $203.187.000 represented only 0.86% of gross assessed property values.

In terms of bonded debt per capita, the net direct general obligation debt outstanding at year-end represented $290.06 per capita compared to $318.44 in
the previous year. Total direct and overlapping debt applicable to the County at year-end was $283,615,000 or $404.88 per capita. This compares to jast
year's amount of $438.33. Details of direct and overlapping debt and legal debt margin are contained in the Statistical Section of this report.

Readers should refer to note 8 of the financial statements for more information on long-term debt activity. The DeKalb Building Authority issued
$35,670,000 in revenue bonds, on behalf of the County, to construct and equip a Juvenile Justice Center. The County will make lease payments to the
DeKalb Building Authority.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

In accordance with the Homestead Option Sales Tax legislation, the County may allocate up 10 20 percent of the previous year’s receipts to capital
outlay projects. The 2005 Budget adopted by the County provided for the use of 20 percent, or $16.75 million for capital outlay projects. As a result of
the growth in the number and value of homesteads, the Homestead Exemption in 2005 decreased to 54.64 percent from 59.07 percent.

Primarily due to historicaily low home mortgage interest rates, the number of homestead properties in the County has increased from 125,000 in 1999 to
147,447 in 2005, or an increase of 18 percent. Population has increased from 610,000 in 1999 to 700,500 in 2005. This increase has impacted the need
for services, especially, in the areas of public safety and the business-type activities (sanitation and water & sewer),



Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.

Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Office of the
Finance Director, 1300 Commerce Drive, Decatur, GA 30030, 404-371-2741.
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivatents
Investments

Accounts receivable (net)
Taxes receivable (net)

Due from other governments
Due from others

Inventories and prepaid items
Deferred bond issuance costs
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Other accrued liabilities
Advanced payments and deposits
Due to other governments
Due to other funds
Due to others
Unearned revenue
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Accrued interest on revenue bonds
Due to others
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for grants
Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Dekaib County, Georgia
Statemnent of Net Assets

December 31, 2045
(in thousands of doilars)

Primary Government

5

3

Governmental
Activities
276,443

5,176
51,446
10,548

8,733

551

2,003

302,837
674,514
1,332,341

14,341
3,665
11,230
2,635
684
7.841
1,078
2,186

49,142
380,607
473,407

762,138
12,246
166
46,007
38,377
858,934

The notes 1o the financial statements are an integra! part of this statement.

5

Business-type
Activities
107,405

20,308

1,664

3,983
9,602

100,750
231,934
948,537
1,424,183

12,711

2,797
237
2,795

6,094
10,028

11,596
502,152
548,410

720,427
7.747
35,761
111,838
875.773

$

Total

383,848
25,484
51,446
12,212
8,733
4,534
11,695

100,750
534,771
1,623,051

2,756,524

27,052
3,665
14,027
2,872
3.479
7.841
1,076
2,186

6,094
10,028

60,738
882,759

1,021,817

1,482,565
19,993
166
81,768
150,215
1,734,707

3

Component

Units

2,951
710
1,374

1.607

70

399

1,625
8,736

322
1,270
3,075
1,584

399

3,668
5,661
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars)

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Nel Assets

The notes to the financiat statements are an integral part of this statement.

Operating Capital Primary Government
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type Component
Functions ! Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Units
Primary government:
Gavernmental activities:
General govemment $ 64,812 $ 11,432 § - - $ (53,380} $ - $ {53,380) $ -
Public safety 167,085 20,995 3,975 - {142,115) - (142,115) -
Civil and criminal court system 124 713 34,280 o4 - {89,529} - (89,529)
Planning 1,703 190 - . {1.513) (1,513) -
Public works 60,965 16,338 - 36,348 (8.279) - (8,279) -
Communily development 13,558 - 5,204 - (8,355) - {8,355) -
Parks and recreation 23,213 3,323 - 928 (18,962) - (18,962} -
Library 12,054 - - - {12,054) - (12,054) -
Health and welfare 34,728 100 2,631 - (31,957} - {31,997) .
Bond issuance expense 624 - - - (624) - (624) -
Non-departmental 21,682 - - - 121,682) - (21,682) -
Interest on long-term debt 14 741 - - - 14,741 - (14,741) -
Total governmental activities 539,879 86,658 12,714 37,276 {403,231) - {403,231) -
Business-type activities:
Water 55,269 52,792 - 7,902 - 5.425 5,425
Sewer 70,343 67,190 - 10,058 - 6,905 6,905 -
Sanitation 56,783 57,067 - - - 284 284 -
DeKalb Peachtree Airport 2,985 6,247 - 3,370 - 6,632 6,832 -
Stormwater Utitity 13,319 16,873 - - 3,554 3,554 -
Total business-type activities 198,699 200,169 - 21,330 - 22,800 22,800 -
Total primary govemment 738,578 288,827 12,714 58,605 (403,231) 22,800 (380.431) -
Component units:
Board of heatth 30,782 6,807 17,577 - - . - {6.368)
Public library board 12,982 720 61 - - - - (12,201}
Total component units $ 43,734 3 7,527 5 17,638 - - - - {18,569}
General revenues:
Sales tax 91,488 - G1.488 -
Proparty tax 231,516 - 231,516
Motor vehicle tax 20,817 - 20,817 -
Hotel / motel {ax 6,446 - 6,446 -
Alcoholic beverage tax 4,268 - 4,268 .
Insurance premium tax 27,786 - 27,786 -
Business license tax 19,802 - 19,602 .
Payments from primary government - - - 16,188
Unrestricted investment earnings 6,048 4,526 10,574 24
Granis not restricted 10 specific purpose 27,930 - 27,930 906
Fees / other 17,949 - 17,949 356
Transfers 9.748 {9,748} - -
Total general revenues and transfers 463,598 (5,222) 458,376 17,485
Change in net assets 60,367 17,578 77,945 {1,084)
MNat assets - beginning 798,667 858,185 1,666,762 5,745
Net assets - ending $ 858534 5 875,773 $ 1,734,707 3 5,661
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equwvalents
Taxes raceivable (net)
Accounts receivable (net)
Due from cther governments
Due from other funds
Inventories and prepaid items
Total assels

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable
Other accrued liabilities
Advance payments and deposils
Due to other govemments
Pue to other funds
Due to cthers
Deferred revenue
Total fiabilities
Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for inventories and prepaid tems
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Debt service funds
Capital projects fundgs
Total fund balances (deficit)
Total habilities and fund balances

The notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this stalerment.

DeKalb County, Georgia
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2005
{in thousands of dollars)

Special Tax
District - Special Tax Other Total
Designated District - Governmental Governmental
General Services Unincorporated Funds Funds
28,249 $ 11,829 L3 1 $ 222,863 $ 262,942
14,529 1,629 29,005 6,283 51,446
4,243 2 - 931 5,176
- - - 10,548 10,548
8,319 1,490 - - 9,808
9 - - - 9
55,349 14,950 29.006 240,625 339,930
5518 1,332 385 5,513 12,748
6,425 2,924 139 1,742 11,230
423 - 1,761 451 2,635
- - 684 - 6584
- - 1,490 7,427 8,917
435 - . 641 1,076
10,615 849 25,501 2,356 39,321
23,416 5,105 29,960 18,130 76,611
8,031 3,189 54 34,550 45,824
9 - - - 9
23,893 - . - 23,893
- 8,656 (1,008} 26,383 32,031
- - - 15,911 15,911
- - - 145,651 145,654
31,933 9,845 {954) 222,495 263,318
55,349 $ 14,950 $ 28,006 3 240,625 3 339,930
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DeKalb County, Georgia

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
To the Statement of Net Assets
{in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2005

Total fund balances for governmental funds $ 263,319
Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets is different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 977,351
An intemal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of risk management to individual funds. The
assets and liabilities of the risk management fund have been allocated to the governmental activities on the

Statement of Net Assets. 727

Some of the County's taxes will be collected after year-end, but are not available soon enough to pay for the current
pericd's expenditures, and therefore are reported as deferred revenue in the funds. 37,135

Deferred bond issuance cost is not recognized as an asset in the governmental funds. 2,093

Long-term liabilities applicable to the County's governmental activities are not due and payable in the current period
and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds,
but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. All liabilities - both current and long-term - are reported in the
Statement of Net Assets.

Accrued interest on bonds 3 (3,665)
Contractual obligations payabie (6,552)
Certificates of participation payable (24,040)
GO bonds payable {218,865)
Revenue bonds payable {98,600)
Unamortized premium on bonds payable {6,184)
Deferred loss on debt refunding 3,806
Claims and judgments not accounted for in the internal service funds {5,155)
Net pension obligation (31,957)
Compensated absences (30,479)

Total long-term liabilities (421,691)

Total net assets of governmental activities $ 858,934

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses ang permits
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Pubiic safety
Civil and crirminal court system
Planning
Public works
Community development
Parks and recreation
Library
Health and welfare
Miscellaneous
Debt service
Bonds issuance costs
Capital outlay:
General government
Public safety
Civil and criminal court system
Public works
Parks and recreation
Health and welfare
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
aver {under) expenditures

QTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Jssuance of debt
Premium on bond issuance
Contractual purchase obligations
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources {uses)
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance (deficit) - ending

DeKalb County, Georgia
Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars)

Special Tax
District - Special Tax Other Total
Designated District - Governmental Governmental
General Services Unincorperated Funds Funds

% 182,898 [3 38,761 $ 55,882 $ 103486 $ 381027
167 698 19,795 10,087 30,757
1,354 192 174 6,355 8,075
12,663 2,736 - 47,658 63,057
15414 - 13,751 2,264 31,429
22,980 2,532 - 16,955 42 467
3,926 424 - 2,846 7.256
239,402 45,343 89,602 189,761 564,108
50,710 - 1,255 6,384 58,349
16,335 79,202 1,062 59,318 155,917
111,514 - 3,255 1,159 115,928
1,053 - 835 - 1,688
376 24,770 15,023 40,169
- - - 13,457 13,457
- 17,148 - 1,783 18,931
11,448 - - - 11,446
10,632 - - 23,495 34,127
13,007 4,234 178 3,347 20,766
3,235 - - 29,040 32,275
. - - 624 624
- - - 4,167 4,167
- - - 2,461 2,461
- - 8,245 8,245
- - 23,545 23,545
- - 13,004 13,004
- - - 55 55
218,308 125,354 6,385 205,107 555,154
21,094 {80,011} 83.217 (15,346) 8,954
- - 35,670 35,670
- - - 837 637
- - - 1.616 1.616
9,826 85.214 - 38,098 133,138

{20,388) (3.711) (85,214} (14,077) (123,390}
{10,562) 81,503 (85,214) 61,944 47 671
10,532 1.492 {1,997} 46,598 56,625
21,401 8,353 1,043 175,897 206,694
$ 31,833 % 9,845 $ (954) $ 222495 3 263,319

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
And Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Net change in fund balance - Total Governmental Funds $ 56,625

The change in net assets reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outiays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets

is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital

outlays ($58,155 net of $10,944 that was not capitalized due to capitalization thresholds) and donated infrastructure assets 37,636
($17.850) exceeded depreciation ($27.425) in the current period:

Bond proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmental funds and thus contribute tc the change in fund balance.
In the Statement of Net Assets, however, issuing debt increases iong-term Jiabilities and does not affect the Statement of
Activities. Simitarly, repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmentai funds but reduces the liability in the
Statement of Net Assets. This adjustment combines the net changes of the foltowing:

Bond sales $ (35,670)

Premium on bond sales (637)

Repayments of bands 17,610

Amortization of bond issuance expense (178)

Amortization of premium on bond sales 731

Amortization of foss on bond refunding {532) (18,676)

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds, expenditures are not recognized for
transactions that are not normalily paid with expendable available financiat resources. In the Statement of Activities,

however, which is presented on the accrual basis, expenses and liabilities are reported regardless of when financiat
resources are available. In addition, interest on long-term debt is not recognized under the modified accrual basis of
accounting until due, rather than as it accrues. This adjustment combines the net changes of the foilowing:

Net pension obligation $ (19,622)

Claims and judgments (5,155)

Compensated absences {4,363)

Capital leases 1,741

Accreed interest on bonds (141) (27,540)
Deferred revenue in governmental funds is susceptible to full accrual on the Statement of Activities. 6,924

An internal service fund is used by management tc charge the costs of risk management to individual funds. The net

revenue of the risk management fund is reported with governmental activities. 5,398
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 80,367

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



DeKalb County, Georgia F18
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actuai
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
Non-GAAP Budget Basis (in thousands of dollars)

Actual Variance with
Criginal Final Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted Budgeted {Budgetary Over
Arnounts Amounts Basis) {(Under)
Revenues:
Property taxes % 122,954 & 124,546 $ 130,796 $ 5,250
Sales taxes 51,900 51,900 43,152 (8,748)
Other taxes 5,550 5,550 5,623 73
Licenses and permits 175 175 167 (8)
Intergovernmental 13,382 13,382 12,663 (719)
Charges for services 25.723 25,683 22577 (3,108}
Fines and forfeitures 14,635 14,635 15412 777
Investment incorne 250 250 1,150 900
Miscellaneous 3,090 3,014 2,379 (635)
Total revenues 237,659 239,135 233,919 (5,216)
Expenditures:
Current:
General govermment:
Chief executive officer 1,853 1,890 1,789 (101)
Board of commissioners 1,281 1,281 1,112 (169)
Law department 2,969 3,294 3,804 510
Ethics 2 2 - {2)
Geographic information system 1,996 1,996 1472 {524)
Facilities management 14,719 14,719 13,145 (1.574)
Purchasing 3,520 3.520 3,284 (236)
Human resources and merit system 3,751 3,751 2,444 (1,307}
Office of Information systems 12,386 12,386 8,861 {3,525)
Finance 6,261 6,344 5,274 (1,070)
Property appraisal and assessments 4,861 4,861 4,208 {653)
Tax commissioner 6,532 6,547 6,247 (300)
Registrar and elections 2,296 2,589 2,003 (496)
Total generat government 62,427 63,180 53,733 (9,447)
Public safety:
Administration and communications 5,637 5,541 1,636 (3,905)
Animal control 2,250 2,246 2,037 {209)
Police 763 763 680 (83)
Fire and rescue services 16,610 16,610 14,619 (1,991)
Total public safely 25,160 25,160 18,972 {(6,188)
Civit and criminal court system:
Sheriff 65,506 65,811 61,657 {(4,154)
Juvenile court 6,114 6,049 5,382 (667}
Superior court 7,420 7,720 7,123 (597}
Cierk superior court 5,010 5,010 4,296 (714)
State court 10,878 10,873 9,980 {913)
Solicitor state court 4,174 4,174 3,519 {655)
District attorney 9,245 9,310 8,734 {576)
Child advocate 727 727 616 {(111)
Probate Court 1.584 1,584 1,505 (79)
Medical examiner 2.149 2,149 2,128 {21)
Public defender 6,617 6,617 5,617 (1,000}
Magistrate court 2,249 2219 1,935 {284)
Total civil and criminal court system 121,644 122,243 112,472 (8.771)

{continued)



DeKalb County, Georgia
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
Non-GAAP Budget Basis {in thousands of dallars)

{continued)
Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted Budgeted (Budgetary Qver
Arnounts Amounts Basis) (Under}
Expenditures {continued):
Current (continued):
Planning 3 1,268 $ 1,268 5 1,120 3 (148)
Public works:
Administration 465 465 391 (74)
Economic development 1,079 1,079 1,018 (60)
Total public works 1,544 1,644 1,410 {134)
Library system 11,807 11,907 11,430 477y
Health and welfare:
Public health 5,297 5,347 5,319 (28)
Community service board 2,194 2,194 2,194 -
Human and community development 1,428 1,428 1,197 (231)
Family and children services 2,063 2,063 1,956 (107}
Total health and welfare 10,582 11,032 10,666 {IE6)
Miscellaneous:
Cooperative extension 1,043 1,043 925 (118)
Non-departmental 26,375 26,247 12,700 {13.547)
Total miscellaneous 27418 27,290 13,625 {13,665)
Total expenditures 262,350 263,624 223,428 {40,196)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (24,691) (24,489) 10,491 34,980
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 13,737 13,737 9,826 (3,911)
Transfers out (19,142} {19,142) (20,388) {1,246}
Excess {(deficiency) of revenues and other sowices
over expenditures and other uses (30,096) (25,894) (71} 29,823
Fund balance, beginning of year 30,096 29,894 29,894 -
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ - 29,823 $ 29,823

Explanation of differences between budget and GAAP:
Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses - budget basis {71)
Differences - budget to GAAP;
Due to revenues:

Accrued receivables 12-31-2004 (8,260)
Accrued receivables 12-31-2005 13,329
Deferred revenues 12-31-2004 3,302
Deferred revenues 12-31-2005 {2,887}
Due to expenditures:
Accrued payables 12-31-2004 13,451
Accrued payables 12-31-2005 8,332
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 10,532

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
F10



Revenuas:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Other taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment inceme
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current.
Generat govemmaent
Cheef executive officer
Finance
Total general government
Public safety:
Police
Cade enforcement
Total public safety
Civit and criminal court system - recorders court
Planning
Public works:
Transportation
Roads and drainage
Total pubiic works
Parks and recreation
Arts, culture, and entertainment
Miscellaneous
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues ovar axpenditures
Other financing sources {uses).
Transfars in
Transfers out
Excess {deficienicy) of revenues and olher sources
over expenditures and other uses
Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

Explanation of differences betwean budget and GAAP:

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Batance - Budget and Actual

DeKalb County, Georgia

For the Year Endad December 31, 2005
Nan-GAAP Budget Basis {in thousands of doitars)

Major Special Revenue Funds

Special Tax Distict -Designated Services

Major Special Revenue Funds
Special Tax District - Unincorporated

Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses - budget hasis

Differences - budget to GAAF:
Due to revenues:
Accrued receivables 12-31-2004
Accrued receivables 12-31-2005
Deferred revenues 12-31-2004
Deferred revenues 12-31-2005
Oue 1o expenditures:
Accrued payables 12-31.2004
Accrued payables 12-31-2005
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis

The notes to the financial slatemants are an integral part of this siatemaent

Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Finat Budget
Budgeted Budgeted {Budgetary Over
Amounts Amounts Basis) {Undar)
3 46,5583 - 47,069 $ 36,808 3 (10,251}
1,203 1,203 1,798 595
B75 675 &98 23
2961 2.962 2736 (226)
3,153 3,153 2,532 (621)
13 13 118 105
127 127 425 258
54,725 55,192 45,115 {10.077)
87.963 84,369 79,599 {4,770)
87,963 84,368 79.599 (4,770
4,894 4,828 4,029 {799)
25,669 26,128 21,822 {4,306)
30,763 30,956 25,851 {5,105)
19,600 19,600 17,408 {2,192)
984 984 811 (173)
3,610 3.610 3,580 (30)
142,920 139,519 127,249 (12.270)
(88,195) (B4,327) (82.134) 2,193
74,898 74,898 85,214 10,316
- (3,665) (3.711) (46)
113,297) (13,094) 631) 12,463
13,297 13,094 13,094 -
$ - 5 - $ 12,463 $ 12,463
631)
{1,505)
1476
1,106
(849)
5,140
{3.245)
$ 1.492
_—

Actual Variance with
Original Fimal Amourits £mal Budget
Budgeted Budgeted (Budgetary Over
Amounts Amounts Basis) (Under)

- $ - $ - $ .
14,626 14,626 22,475 7.84%
32,258 32,258 34,556 2,298
20,000 20,000 19,795 (205)
14,418 14,411 13,751 (660}

15 23 173 150
81,317 61,318 90,750 8,432
164 164 164 -
1,149 1,149 1,094 (55)
1,313 1,313 1,258 (55)
1412 1,412 1,086 (326)
1,412 1,412 1,086 (326)
3,284 3,284 2.928 (356)
788 78a 638 (150}
182 182 178 (4)
5,979 6,979 6,088 (891)
74,338 74,339 84,662 10,323
{74,898) (74,898) {85,214) {10,316)
{560) (558) (552) 7
560 559 552 7
R (] R 5 - B

(552)

(24,544}

25,017

23,881

(25,501)

172

470}

$ {1.867)



DeKalb County, Georgia
Propnetary Funds Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2005
{in thousands of dollars)

Water and Other Total Internal
Sewerage Enterpnse Enterprise Service
ASSETS System Sanitauon Funds Funds Funds
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 7.501 5 38,118 ) 10642 s 56,261 % 64,645
Accounts receivable (net) 17,059 2,069 1,180 20.308 -
Due from other governments 442 - 1222 1,664 -
Inventories and prepaid iterns 2412 - - 2,412 2,113
Restricted:
Cash and cash eguivalents 100,750 - - 100,750 -
Total current assets 128,164 40,187 13,044 181,385 66,768
Noncutrent assets:
Deferred bond issuance costs 9,602 - - 8,602 -
Capital assets {net) 1,051,576 44 401 49,013 1,144,990 35,481
Total nencurrent asseis 1,061,178 44 401 49013 1,154 592 35,481
Total assets 1,189,342 84,508 62,057 1,335,987 102,239
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 3,025 2,487 592 7.104 7.260
Claims and judgments payable, current portion - - - - 1,575
Obligation under capial leases, current porhon - - - - 2.366
Other accrued habilives 1,737 758 41 2,536 261
Advance payments and deposits 230 - 7 237 -
Due to other governments 2,795 - - 2,795 -
Payable from restricled assais:
Revenue bonds payable, current portion 7,315 - - 7,318 -
Accrued inlerest on revenue bongds €.094 - - 6.094 -
Due to others 10,028 - - 10,028 -
Total current liabiliies 32,124 3,245 740 36,108 17,402
Noncurrent habitities:
Claims and judgments payable, long term portion - - - . 4.148
Landfill closure and postclosure cost - 12,412 - 12,412 -
Obligation under capital leases, lang term portion - - - - 3,136
Compensalted absences payable 3,007 1,757 90 4,854 633
Revenye bonds payable, leng term poriion 483,585 - - 483,585 -
Unamortized premium on bonds payable 7,166 - - 7.166 -
Deferred loss on debl refunding {7.718} - - {7.719) -
Total noncurrent liabilities 486 039 14,189 20 500,298 7,917
Total kabilties 518,163 17,414 830 536,407 25319
NET ASSETS
Invesled in captal assets, net of related debt 546,437 44 401 49,013 689,851 30,258
Resincted for debt service 7747 - - 7,747 -
Restricted for capital projects 35,761 - 35,761 -
Unrestricted 31,234 22,773 12,214 £6,221 46.562
Total net assets 5 671.179 $ 67.174 $ 61,227 799,580 3 76,820
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internai service fund aclivities related to enterpnse funds 76,193
Net assets of business-type activities % 875773

The notes to the firancial statements are an inlegral part of this statement. F21



Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2605
(In thousands of dollars)

Operating revenues:
Metered sales
Collection and disposal fees
Rental fees
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Supplies
Operating services and charges
leasehold operating expenses
Miscellaneous
Depreciation and amortization
Labor, overhead, and vehicle charges capitalized
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest income
Interest expense
Loss on sale of capital assets
Income before capital donations and transfers
Capital donations
Transfers out
Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning
Net assets - ending

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds
Change in net assets of business-type activities

DeKalb County, Georgia
Proprietary Funds

F22

Water and Other Total Internal
Sewerage Enterprise Enterprise Service
System Sanitation Funds Funds Funds
$ 106,241 $ - $ - 3 106,241 s
- 56,127 - 56,127 -
- 3,631 3,631 -
- 2,614 2,614 193
- - 18,873 16,873 119,126
13,741 940 2 14,683 403
119,582 57,067 23,120 200,169 119,722
37,426 24,486 1,170 63,082 7.790
13,539 1,318 2,846 17,703 15,160
23,013 26,603 11,702 61,318 71.250
11,277 - - 11,277 -
1,163 797 - 1,960 500
26,110 2,117 509 28,736 18,931
(5,454) - - (5,454) -
107,074 55,321 16,227 178,622 113,631
12,908 1,746 6,893 21,547 6.091
2,784 1.222 520 4,526 1,388
{15,305} - (15,305) {146)
- - - {6.707)
387 2,968 7.413 10,768 626
17,960 - 3,370 21,330 -
- (9.748) (9,748}
18,347 2,968 1,035 22,350 626
652,832 64,206 60,192 76,294
$ 671,178 3 67,174 $ 61,227 $ 76,920
(4.772)
3 17,578

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statemaent.



Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for gogds and services
Cash payments to employees for services
Cther operating revenues
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities'
Transfers to other funds
Net cash provided (required) by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities,
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Principal and interest paid on revenue bonds
Payments on leases
Decrease in escrow deposits
Capital donations
Net cash required by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at begioning of year
Cash and cash equivatents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities

Operating income

Dexalo County, Georgia

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
(In thousands of dollars}

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities.

Depreciation and amortizaticn

Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables
{!ncrease) decrease in inventories
Increase {decrease) in payables
Increase {decrease) in other liabilities
Increase (decrease) in advance deposits

Net cash provided by operating activities

Noncash capital donations

The notes te the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Water and Other Total internal
Sewerage Enterprise Enterprise Service
System Sanitation Funds Funds Funds
$ 420,058 $ 56,956 3 20,184 $ 197,198 119819
(42,507) {30,102) (15,175) (87,784) {87,452)
{37,193) (24,256) (1,172) (62,621) {7.790)
13,759 1,159 1,853 16,771 -
54,117 3,757 5,690 63,564 24,337
- - (9,748) (9,748) -
- - (9,748) (8.748) -
(43.767) (8.302) (3,354) (56,423) {14,772)
- - - - 1,159
(32.111) - - (32,111) -
- - - - {2.466)
(277} - . (277) -
12,352 - 3,370 15,722 {71)
{63,803) (9,302) 16 (73,089) (16,150)
2,684 1,222 408 4,404 1,388
2,684 1,222 498 4,404 1,388
{7.002) (4,323) (3,544) (14,869) §575
115,253 42441 14,186 171,880 55,070
108,251 38,118 10,642 167,011 64,645
12,908 1,746 6,893 21,547 6,001
26110 2,117 509 268,736 18,931
13,835 1,173 (839) 14,169 .
80 - - 60 (52%)
1,151 {1,280) (875) {1,004) (174}
15 1 2 18 14
38 - - 38 -
54,117 3,757 5,690 63,564 24,337
$ 5608 $ . $ - 3 5,608 -

F23



DeKalb County, Georgia

Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments:
US government securities
Collateralized mortgage obligations
Corporate bonds
Corporate stocks
Accrued interest receivable
Taxes receivable
Tota! assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts pavable
Due to other funds
Due to others
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits

and other purposes (see Note 1A of
Required Supplemental Information)

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.

General
Employees'
Pension

3 105,482

152,180
43,018
103,509
720,402
2,271

Agency
Funds

1,126,862

29,947

626
892
123

80,193

1,641

80,193

$  1,125221

80,193

F24



DeKalb County, Georgia
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
{in thousands of dollars)

General
Employees'
Pension
Additions:
Contributions;
Employer $ 7,365
Employee 3,761
Other 141
Total contributions 11,257
Investment earnings:
Dividends and interest 25,235
Net increase in fair market value of investments 21,211
Total investment earnings 46,446
Less investment expense {4,416)
Net investment earnings 42,030
Total additions 53,287
Deductions:
Benefit payments 60,083
Refunds of contributions 291
Administrative expenses 331
Total deductions 60,705
Change in net assets (7.418)
Net assets, beginning of year 1,132,639
Net assets, end of year 3 1,125,221

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement,
F25



DeKalb County, Georgia
Component Units
Statement of Net Assets

December 31, 2005
{In thousands of dollars)

Public
Board of Library

ASSETS Health Board Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,440 5 511 $ 2,951
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 399 - 399
Investments - 710 710
Accounts receivable {net) 1,288 86 1,374
Due from other governmenits 1,607 - 1,607
Prepaid items 70 - 70
Capital assets {net) 1,192 433 1,625

Total assets 6,996 1,740 8,736
LIABILITIES
Accounts and contracts payable o4 118 172
Bue to other governments 1.217 - 1,217
Deferred revenue 94 - 94
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 304 18 322

Due in more than one year 1,217 53 1,270

Total liabilities 2,886 189 3,075
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets (net of related debt) 1,192 402 1,594
Restricted 399 - 399
Unrestricted 2,519 1,149 3,668

Total net assets $ 4,110 3 1,551 3 5,661

The notes fo the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Component Units
Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2005

{In thousands of doellars)

Net (Expense} Revenue and

Changes in Net Assets

Program Revenues Public
Charges for Operating Grants Board of Library
Expenses Services and Contributions Heaith Board Total
Board of Health § 30,752 $ 6,807 $ 17,577 $ {6,368) $ - $ (6,368)
Public Library Board 12,982 720 61 - (12,201) {12,201)
Total component units ~ § 43,734 3 7,527 3 17,638 {6,368) (12,201) (18,569)
General revenues:
Intergovernmental, not restricted for specific programs - S06 906
Payments fram DeKalb County 5,146 11,043 16,189
Unrestricted investment earnings - 24 24
Miscellaneous 173 193 366
Total general revenues 5,319 12,166 17.485
Change in net assets (1,049) (35) (1,084}
Net assets - beginning 5,159 1,586 6,745
Net assets - ending s 4,110 $ 1,551 $ 5,661

The notes to the financial statements are an integral par of this statement.
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DEKALB COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005
Surnmary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principies (GAAP) as applied to governmental units  The Governmentat
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for governmeantal units  The County’s significant accounting policies are described below.

(A} The Financial Reporting Entity

DeKalb County, Georgia {the "County™) was created by legislative act in 1822, and operates under an elected Chief Executive Officer and County Commission (seven
members) form of government. As required by GAAP, the financial statements of the financial reporting entity include those of DeKalt County (the primary government), and
its componant units. Alsa, the fiduciary activities of the County's pension plan and various constitutional officers, judges, and other judicial officials are included in the
fiduciary funds. These include the Tax Commissioner, Sheriff, Cierk of Superior Court, State Court, State Court Probation, Juvenile Court, Probate Court, and Magistrate
Court.

The component units discussed below are included in the County's financial reporting entity because of the County's financial accountability for the entities and the
significance of their operational and financial reiationships with the County. in conformity with GAAP, the financial statements of the DeKalb County Board of Health and the
DeKalb County Public Library Board have been included as discretely presented component units. The component units column in the financial statements includes the
financial data for the County's two component units, as reflected in their most recent audited financial statements. These component units are reported in a coiumn
separate from the County's financial information to emphasize that they are legally separate from the County. The following discretely presented component units are
incorporated into the County’s financial report:

DeKalb County Board of Health - The governing board of the Board of Health consists of seven members: The Chief Executive Officer of the County, the Superintendent
of the DeKalb County Board of Education (both by virtte of their offices), three members appointed by the County Commission, and two members appointed by other
jurisdictions. The County, by virtue of its appeintments and the presence of the Chief Executive Officer on the board, controls a majority of the Board of Heafth's
governing body pasitions. Although the County does not have the autherity to approve or modify the Board of Health's operational and capital budgets, it does have the
abity 1o control the amount of funding it provides to the Board of Health. Such funding is significant to the overall operations of the Board of Health.

DekKalb County Public Library Board - The goveming board of the Public Library Board consists of twelve members: the Chief Executive Cfficer of the County, the
Executive Assistant to the Chief Executive Officer (both by virtue of their offices), eight members appointed by the County Commission, and twe members appointed by
other jurisdictions. The County, by virtue of its appointments and the presence of the Chief Executive Officer and the Executive Assistant to the Chief Executive Officer on
the Board, controis a majority of Public | ibrary Board governing body positions. Although the County does not have the authority to approve or modify the Public Library
Board's operationa: and capital budgets, it does have the ability to contral the amount of furxding it provides to the Public Library Board. Such funding is significant to

the overall operations of the Public Library Board.

Both component units have June 30 yvear-ends, consistent with the practice of most organizations receiving significant funding from the State.

Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained directly from their administrative offices. Addresses for these administrative offices
are as foliows:



G)]

Deialb County Board of Health DeKalb County Public Library Board
445 Winn Way Richardson Health Center 215 Sycamore Street
Decatur, GA 30030 Decatur, GA 30030

In 2003, the County established the Dekalb County Building Authority (the “Building Authority™) which is govermned by a board comprised solely of members appointed by the

CEO and Board of Commissioners. The Public Safety and Judicial Facilities Authority was also created in 2003, established to construct and equip County court related
facilities. Although both are legally separate from the County’s Board of Commissioners, these authorities are reported as if they were a part of the primary government,
as blended component units, because their sole purpose is to finance and construct County public buildings. The Building Autharity's funds are included as non-major
debt service and capital projects funds. The Public Safety and Judicial Facilities Authority's funds are included as nen-maijor capital projects funds No separate
financial statements are available.

The County is also responsible for appointing the mambers of the DeKalb County Housing Authonty, but the County's accountability for the Autherity does not extend
beyond making the appointments.

The Fulton-DelKalb Hospital Authority is considered a joint venture with Fulton County, Georgia. The Atianta Regional Commission is considered a joint venture with
other governments of metropolitan Attanta.

Basis of presentation

The government-wide financial statements (l.e. , the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) display information about the primary government and its
component units. These statements include the financial activities of the pverall government, except for fiduciary activities. Efiminations have been made to minimize the
double-counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmemal and business-type activities of the County. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different business-type activities of the County and for each
function of the County’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Administrative overhead charges are included in direct expenses for the business-type activities, Program revenues include 1} fees,
fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or

capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among prograr revenues are reporied instead as general revenues.

The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate statemants for each fund category - governmental,
proptietary, and fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and proprietary funds, each displayed in a separate
column. All remaining govemnmentat funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services
and producing and delivering goods in connection with the funds principatl ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County's proprietary funds are
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting these definitions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, other governmental units, and/or other funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are availabie for use, it is the government's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they
are needed.

Fe9



(€}

F30
The County reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the County's primary operating fund. it accounts far aii financiat resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted
for in another fund

The Special Tax District Designated Services Fund accounts for operations of the County's police, roads and drainage. and recreation departments. Financing 1s
provided by a specific annual property tax levy and operating transfers from the special tax district unincorporated fund. Such property taxes are used only to
provide police. roads and drainage. and recreation services for all residents of the County not provided with these services by other municipalities.

The Special Tax District Unincorporated Fund accounts for operations of varicus County activities which collect sevenues that are restricted for use in the
unincorporated areas of the County.

The County reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water and Sewerage System Fund accounts far the provision of water and sewer services to the residents of the County. All activities necessary to provide
such services are accounted for in this fund.

The Sanitation Fund accounts for the pravision of sanitation services to residents of the County. All activities necessary o provide such services are accounted for
in this fund.

The Courty reporis the following fiduciary funds:

The Generai Employees' Pension Fund accounts for accumulated resources for pension benefit payments to qualified County employees.

The agency funds account for the assets held by the County in a trustee capacily as an agent for individuals, gavernmental units, and/or other funds.
The County reports the following other fund types:

Intemal service funds account for vehicle maintenance, vehicle replacement, and risk management related activities provided to other departments of the County on
a cost reimbursement hasis.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

The govermment-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary
fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Agency furnds have no measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded whean a liability
is incurred. regardfess of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Gavernmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are coliected within 60 days of the end

of the current fiscal period, with the exception of grants which are recognized when all eligibility requirements have been met. Expenditures generally are recorded when

a liability is incurred, as under acorual accounting. However, debt service expenditures. as well as expenditures related to compensatec absences and claims and
judgments. are recorded anty when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have
been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue dems are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
government.
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All governmental and business-type activities of the Gounty follow FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before Movember 30, 1989, Accounting Principles
Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulietins, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements. The County has elected not to follow the option
allowed under GASB Statement 20 and thus does not foliow any FASB Staterments issued after November 30, 1989,

During fiscal year 2005, the County adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investmen! Risk Discicsures . This pronouncement requires additenal
disclosures presented in these notes, but has no impact on the County's net assets. These disclosures address common deposit and investment risks related 10 credit

risk, concentration of credit risk, interast rate risk, and foreign currency risk. Included as an element of interest rate risk, Statement No, 40 requires disclosures of
investments that have fair values that are highly sensitive to changes in interest rates

During fiscal year 2005, the County adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 42,  Accounting and Financial Repeorting for impairmen! of Capital Assets and for
Insurance Recoveries. During fiscal year 2005, the County did not experience any capital asset impairment toss with respect 1o these provisions

Budgetary Data

An operating budget is legally adopted each fiscal year for all governmental funds except capital projects funds, library fund, and alternative dispute resalution fund.
The level of control (the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) for each legally adopted annual operating budget is the department level.
Supplemental appropriations may be made annually at mid-year by the Board of Commissioners. Supplemental appropriations are also made cut of the

County's General Fund contingency account by the Board of Commissioners to fund unforeseen expenditures within the County's governmental funds at

any time during the year. Presented final budgetary information reflects all supplementat appropriations as legally adopted by the Board of Commissicners.
Individual arsnendments were not material in relation to the originat appropriations The Board of Commissioners must approve any department level changes to a
praviously adopted budget. Management may amend the budget without seeking the appraval of the Board at any level below the department level.

In accordance with Georgia law, the County has project length balanced budgets for all capital projects funds.
Thae annual budget cycle begins in September of the preceding year when budget workbooks are distributed to each department. The County Code requires that the
Chief Executive Officer of the County submit a proposed budget to the Board of Commissioners by December 15. The Chief Executive Ofiicer and Board of

Commissioners advertise and conduct public hearings on the proposed budget in adherence to local ordinance and state law and adopt a fina! budget prior to March 1.

The tax millage is set and tax bills are issued around July 1. A revised budget, based on fund balance camyovers and current revenue and expenditure trends, may be
agdopted ptior to this date. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the
appropriation, is employed in the governmental funds.

Property Taxes

Property tax billing and collection cycle dates are as folows: lien date - January 1 of each year; levy date - Fourth Tuesday in June; due dates - August 15 and November
15; and collection dates - anytime during the year.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investmeants

Cash management pools which are used essentially as demand depesit accounts and investments with maturities within 90 days of purchase are considered cash
equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash fiows. Investments are stated at fair value, based on quoted market prices. The Georgia Fund 1 {a loca! government
investment pool) is not SEC registered, but is operated in a manrer consistent with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, Therefore, fair value of
the County's investment in the Georgia Fund 1 is based on the price of the County's share in the poal. The Georgia Office of Treasury and Fiscal Services is the agency
with regulatory cversight for Georgia Fund 1.
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Inventories are determined by actual physical count and are stated at cost {Using average cost flow assumptions) for the governmenta! activities and at the lower of
average cost or market for the business-type activities The consumption method is used 1o account for inventories.

Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated histoncal cost. Donaled fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of
donation, General infrastructure assets consist of the road network assets that were acquired or that received substantial improvements subsequerd to January 1, 1980
and are reported at eslimated historical cost. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are
not capitalized. The County capitalized $10.074,000 of interest incurred in business-type activities for the year Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the foliowing estimated useful lives and with the following capitalization thresholds:

Estimated
Useful Lives Capitalization

Asset Class {In years) Threshold

Buildings 20-50 $40,000 - 100,000
Land improvements 15-50 30,000 - 100,000
Infrastructure 10-50 20,000 - 100,000
Vehicles 1-10 any amount
Equipment 5 8,000

Restricted Assets

Proceeds from the sale of water and sewer revenue bonds plus interest earned on the investment of these funds are restricted to the construction of new capital facilities
and other improvements to the water and sewerage system. All monies in excess of those required to maintain the working capital of the water and sewerage system's
operations are transfermed to a separate account and restricted to the construction of new capital faciities and other expenditures as allowed by the system's bond
resclutions. Sinking fund monies are restricted 1o the payment of bond principal and interast requirements as they become due as well as the maintenance of required
reserves. Liabilities payable from these restricted assets are reported separately fo indicate that the sourca of payment is the restricted agsets.

Claims, Judgments, and Compensated Absences

Liabitities for claims and judgments against the County, inciuding estimated liabilities for claims incurred but not reported at year-end, have been accrued in the appropriate
funds. Liabilities for compensated absences have been accrued in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements and are all considered long-term
coligations of the County. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds if they have matured and are expected to be paid with expendable available
resCurces.

Employees earn annual leave at the rate of 15 days per year for the first 5 years up to a maximum of 30 days per year after 25 years. There is no requiremnent that annual
leave be taken, but the maximurn permissible accumulation at year end is 60 days. Any accumulation of annual leave greater than 60 days is converted to sick leave at
year end. At termination, emplayees are paid for any accumulated annual leave up to the 60 day maximum. Employees eam Sick leave at the rate of 13 days per year with
no limitations, At termination accumulated sick leave is converted to annual leave at the rate of 15 days to 1 day and is subject 1o the 60-day limitation.
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(L) Landfill Closure and Postclasure Care Casts

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its Seminole Road landfill when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain
maintenance andg monitoring functions at the site for 30 years after closure. Although closure and postelosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the
landfill stops accepting waste, the County reports a podtion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an Operatling expense in each period based on landfil
capagcity used as of each balance sheet date. The $12,412,000 reported as landfil closure and postclosure cost liability at year-end represents the cumulative amount
reported to date based on the use of 94% of the estimated capacity of the landfill, net of related expenditures to date of $8,357.000. The County will recognize the
remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of $1,326,000 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to
parform all closure and postclosure in 2005.  Actual cost may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in requlations. Closure and postclogure care
financial assurance requirements will be met by adjusting the sanitation rate structures in the business-type activities as required. The County expects to close the
current landfill in the year 2007 but has already acquired enough acditional Jand to meet landfill needs through 2019,

(M

—

Management Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estmates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities and the reported amound of revenues and expenditures / expenses during the reporting period. Actual resuits could differ from those estimates. Significant
items subject to such estimates and assumpticns include: usefu life of capital assets, allowances, legal liabilities, and landfill closure and pestclosure cost estimations

Joint Ventures

DeKalb County is party to a contract with Fulton County and the Futton-DeKalb Hospital Authority (the “Authority”) for the operation of Grady Memorial Hospital {the "Hospital).

The Hospital provides health services to indigent citizens of both counties. Three members of the Authority's Board of Trustees are appainted by the DeKalb County Board of
Commissioners with another seven members appointed by the Fulton County Beard of Commissioners. The entire operations of the Authority are disclosed as a

component it in the Futtan County, Georgia Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. DeKalb County has a financial interest in the Authority because eperating deficits of
the Hospital, up to an annually predetermined amaount, relating to indigent care must be funded by Fuiton County or DeKalb County under the terms of the contract. The
funding formula is based on the ratio of patient levels between the two counties. For the year, DeKatb County funded $14,135,00C of the Hospital's operating deficit. DeKalb
County has limited control over the operating budget of the Hospital but must approve any debt issuance of the Authority. The Authority's debt is secured by a pledge of the
operating revenues of the Hospital. Payments to the Authority are made from the County's other gavernmental funds. Separate financia! statements may be obtained from:
Futton-Dekalb Hospital Authority; 80 Butler St SE; Atlanta Gegrgia 30314,

Condensed financial information for the Autharity as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004 is as follows (in thousands of dollars) (December 31, 2005 amounts are
unavailabla):

Total Assets $ 519721 Total Operating Revenues $ 510,144
Total Liabilities $ 488,806 Total Gperating Expenses $ 613,675
Tatal Net Assets § 30915 Nonoperating Revenue (Net) $ (12,154)
Current Debt % 45505 Fulten County and DeKalb County Contributions $ 105,279
L.ong-Term Debt $ 2584562 Decrease in Net Assets $ {10,406)

Under Georgia law, the County, in conjunction with other cities and counties in metrepolitan Atlanta, is a member of the Atlanta Regional Commission {ARC) and is required
to pay annual dues thereto. During the past year, the County paid $846,580 in such dues. Memberstip in the ARC is required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated
(OCGA) Section 50-8-34 which provides for the organizational structure of the ARC. The ARC Board membership includes the chief elected official of each county and
municipality of the area, OCGA 50-8-39.1 provides that the member governments are liabte for any debts or obhgations of the ARC, Separate financial statements may be
obtained from: Attanta Regional Commission; 40 Courtland St NE, Atlanta Georgia 30303.

There were no known related party transactions involving either joint venture.
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3. Budget Basis of Accounting

Due to legal requirements, revenues and appropriations for governmentai funds are budgeted on a basis that is not consistent with GAAP  The actual results of operations
on the budget basis for the General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds arg presented in this report.

The mayor differences between the budget and GAAP are
{1} Revenues {principaliy property taxes, accounts receivable, grants, and interest receivables) are recorded when received in cash {budget) as opposed 10
whan susceptible to accrual { GAAPY;
{2) Expenditures (pnincipally payroll, workers' compensaticn, and purchases) are recorded when paid (budget) as opposed to when incurred (GAAPY),
{3) Debt service requirements due January 1, 2006 are recorded as expenditures in 2005 (budget) as opposed to 2006 when obligations are due (GAAP);

. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

The County maintains a cash and investment pool that is availakie for use by all County funds, &xcept for certain of the trust and agency funds. In addition, cash, cash
equivalents and investments are separately neld by other funds, including the Generat Employees’ Pension Fund. At year-end, the carrying amourt of the County's cash, cash
and equivalents and investments was $1,659,435,000 and the bank balance was $1,334,958,000. All of the bank baiance was covered by federal depository insurance or by
collateral held by the County's custodial bank in the County's name.

Statutes authorize the County to invest in abligations of the United States Treasury or Agencies, banker's acceptances, bank money market accounts, repurchase agreements,
and the Georgia Fund 1 (a local government investment poal). The General Empioyees’ Pension Fund is atse auvthonzed to invest in corporate bonds and debentures which
are not in default as to pringipal and interest; corporate stocks, common or preferred; first ioans on real estate where the loans are guaranteed by the Administrator of
Veterans Affairs or by the Federal Housing Authority of the United States; cerificates of deposit in nationat banks and state banks insured by the FDIC; and any other
investments approved by the Pension Boarg. The Pension Trust Fund also invests in collateralized maortgage obligations {CMOs). These securilies are based on cash

flows from interest and principal payments on underlying mortgages. CMOs are sensitive 1o prepayments by mortgages, which may resuft from a decline in inlerest rates.

The County invests in these securities in part to maximize yields and in part to hedge against a rise in interest rates.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

To control custodial credit risk, the County's investment policy requires all secaurities and collateral to be held by an independent third party custodian in the County's name. The
custodian provides the County with monthly values. The County’s investment in the Georgia | investment pool is slaled at fair value, which also approximates the value of the
investment upon withdrawal.

Concentration of Credit Risk
The County diversifies its use of investment instruments to avoid incurring unreasonable risks inherend in over-investing in specific instruments, individual financial institutions,
or maturities. The County's primary government investment policy limits County investments to the following maximum percentages: U.S. Treasury Obligations 100%,
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Obligations of .$. Gavemment Agencies 100%, Repurchase Agreements 25%, Certificates of Deposits (Commercial Banks) 75%, Certificates of Deposit {S&L Associations) 10%,
L pcal Government Investmeant Pool (State Sponsored) 100%, and Commercial Bank Money Market Accounts 25%. Maximums may be exceeded temporarily with the priar approval
of the Finance Director. The County's investment poiicy also requires that maturities shali be timed such that a8 minimum of 80% be invested for a period of less than one year and
100% be invested for a period less than two years. The County’s investment policy limits the pension investments to the following maximum percentages: Domestic securities 60%,

Non-gomestic securities 10%, and Fixed income investments and Cash 40%.



As of December 31, 2005, the County's reporting entity had the following investments’
{In thousands of doftars)

Type of Investment Fair Vatue Investments Maturities (in Years)
Less than 1 1-5 6-10 More than 10

Prima overnment

Georgia Fund | 315,758 315,758 - - -
Restricted Trust Accounts 64,941 64,941 - - -
Money Market 33,697 33,697 - - -
Total Primary Government (non-fiduciary) 414,396 414,396 - - -
Fiduciary Fund
Pension Trust Fund
Corporate Stocks 720,402 va n/a n‘a nfa
Mutuat Funds 105,482 105,482
U.8. Government Securities 152,180 25622 25,901 29,767 70,690
CMO's 43,018 - 866 2,689 39,463
Corporate Bonds 103,509 327 49,127 35,292 18,763
Totat Pension Trust Fund 1,124,591 131,431 75,894 67,748 129,116

Credit Risk - Investments

As a means of limiting exposure 10 credit risk, the risk of loss due 1o the failure of the security issuer or backer, the County limits investments to obligations of the U.S. government
or obligations explicitiy guaranteed by the .S, government and those deposit-type items which can be coltateralized at 110% of the face value. The County's pension funds are not
collateralized and are subject to credit and interest rate risk.

The County's investment policy requires that repurchase agreements be "marked tc Market,” i.e., the current market vakue of securities purchased must meet or exceed the cost of
investment plus anticipated interest earmings. The County did not hold repurchase agreements in 2045,

The County's pension trust fund investment policy requires that the fixed income portfalio be of high quality and chosen with respect to maturity ranges, coupon levels, refunding
characteristics and marketability. Fixed income managers are engaged ta reduce volatility of the Plan's assets, provide a deflation hedge, and produce a highly predictable and
dependable source of income. The quality rating of the overall portfolic must be A or better at all imes  As of December 31, 2005, the weighted average of the fixed income portfolio
was Aaz2 by Moody's Investors Service

Interest Rate Risk - Investments

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair vaiue of an investment. This nsk 1s managed within the portfolio using the curation method.
This method is used in the management of fixed income portfolios 1o quantify the pertfolio’s sensitivity 10 interest rate changes. As of December 31, 2005, the weighted average
of the OA duration of the pension fund's fixed income portfolio was 4.58 years as compared to the benchmark LB Aggregate Bond Index duration of 4.57 years.

The Georgia Office of Treasury and Fiscal Services is the oversight agency for Georgia Fund | Georgia Fund | is rated AAAm by Standard and Poor's.

Allowance For Uncollectible Receivables

Allowances for uncollectibie receivables at December 31 are as follows (in thousands of doftars).

Governmental activities. Business-type activities:
Taxes receivable $ 936 Accounts receivable § 5,707
Accounts receivable 23,332
$ 30,268
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6, Due From Other Governmaents

Amounts due from other governments at December 31 are as follows {in thousands of doliars)

Governmental activities.

Business-type activities:

F36

Georgia Emergency Management Agency $ 2877 Georgia Emergency Management Agency 77
Georgia Departmant of Labor 1,769 Federal Aviation Administration 3 1.102
Georgia Department of Transportation 1,584 Georgia Depariment of Transportation 43
Housing & Urban Develepment 1,583 Other local governments 442
US Department of Justice 1,561 Total $ 1,664
Other 1,174
Total § 10,548 Compaonent Units:
Miscellaneous State Agencies 3 1.607
7. Capital Assets
Changes in capital assets are as follows {in thousands of dolars): Accumulated Accumulated
Depreciation Depreciation
and and Book
Balance Balance Amgrtization Amaortization Value
12/31/2004 Additions Deletions 12/31/2005 12/31/2004 Additions Deletions 12/31/20C05 1273172005
Governmental activities
Not depreciateg:
Land $ 201,515 H 5,653 5 - $ 207,168 $ 207,188
Construction in progress 65,563 44,138 (14,032) 95,669 95,669
Depreciated:
Land improvements 26,509 - - 26,509 $ 11,066 § 533 § - % 11,848 14 860
Buildings 307,247 2,043 - 308,290 73,547 6,068 - 79,815 229,675
Infrastructure 524,773 23,755 - 548,528 120,231 11,661 - 131,892 416,636
Other equipment 42,188 2.682 (10.471) 34,599 22,614 9,113 {10471) 21.256 13,343
Totals $ 1,167,795 $ 78.471 ] {24,503) §1,221,763 $ 227,458 3 27,425 $ {10.471) § 244412 $ 977.35t
Business-type activities
Not depreciated:
Land % 41669 § 3 03 - $ 41672 3 41672
Censtruction in progress 208,472 61,057 (166,267} 190,262 190,262
Depreciated
Land improvements 58,713 85,652 - 142,385 % 14,141 5 1,827 % - § 16,068 126,297
Buildings 11,733 - - 11,733 5,410 33z - 6,742 4,991
Piants 159 864 - - 159,864 58,554 3,145 - 61,699 48,165
Lines 607,729 79,936 (3.019) 684 646 176,634 12,924 {3,019} 186,539 458,107
Water meters 51,958 4,448 (481) 55,925 18,626 3,605 (481) 21,650 34,275
Vehicles and portable
equipment 130,415 15,422 (7.424) 138,413 92,747 18,630 {6,968) 104,411 34,002
Other equipment 18,706 2.040 (1.236) 19,510 10,301 3,113 {1,236) 12,178 7.332
Leaseholds 169,411 - - 169.411 20,567 3.476 - 24,043 145,368
Totals $1.543,670 § 248558  § (178.427) $1613.801 5 397880 § 47,152 $ (11,702 § 433,330 $1.180,471
Component units
Depreciated
Other equipment 3 4,681 % 352 3 {519) § 4,514 3 2,820 $ 588 % (519 & 2,889 3 1,625

During fiscal year 2005, the County did not experience any capital asset impairment loss with respect {o the provisions of GASB Statement No. 42,

Reporting for impairment of Capifal Assets and for Ingurance Recoveries.
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Depreciation was charged to functions / programs of the primary government as follows (in thousands of dollars).

Governmental activities: Business-type activities

General government $ 3,556 Water and sewerage system $ 25595
Public safety 4,226 Sanitation 2,117
Civil and criminal court system 3,639 DeKalb-Peachtree Airport 509
Planning 39 Vehicle maintenance 301
Public works 11,903 Vehicle replacement 18,630
Community development 105 5 47,152
Library 605
Parks and recreation 1,188
Health and welfare 878
Miscellaneous 1,176

$ 27,425

Construction in progress at December 31 is composed of the following (in thousands of dollars):

Project Expended Required
Authoriza- as of Future

tion 12/31/2005 Committed Financing
Parks and recreation $ 91686 § 13,818 & 77868 § -
Health centers 1,503 98 1,407 -
Public safety facilities 53,207 22,649 30,558 -
Court facilities 61,127 12,484 48,643 -
General government facilities 70,561 24,782 45779 -
Infrastructure 44,022 21,840 22,182 -
Totals $ 322106 % 95669 § 226437 § -

Business-type activities

Water and sewer facilities $ 201,001 5 1728 $ 29,720 & -
Sanitation faciiities 52,922 12,310 40,612 -
Airport facilities 13,248 6,316 6,932 -
Stormwater facilities 1,340 355 285 -
Totals $§ 268511 § 190282 § 78,249 & -
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8, Long-Term Obligations

Changes in long-term abligaticns for the year are as follows (in thousands of dollars)

Balance Payments/ Satance Current Long-term
12/31/2004 Additions Retirements 12/31/2005 Parlion Portion
Governmental activities
Claims and judgments payable $ 12,474 5 75,029 5 (v0.625) % 16.878 % 12,730 3 4,148
Net pension obligation 12,335 19,622 - 31,857 - 31,957
Compensated absences payable 26,116 12,579 (8.216) 30,479 12,579 17,900
Capitad leases {equipment) 8,253 1,616 (3.357) 6.552 3,869 2,683
General obligation bonds payable 234,500 - (15,635) 218,865 15,985 202,880
Revenue bonds payabie 64,420 35870 (1,490) 98,600 2,785 5,815
Certificates of participation payabie 24,525 - {485) 24,040 970 23,070
Unamortized premium on bonds payable 6,278 637 (731} 6,184 718 5,466
Deferred loss on bond refunding {4.338) - 532 (3.606} _[494) (3,312)
Totals $ 384,603 $ 145153 5 (100.007) % 429,749 3 49,142 $ 380,607
Business-type activities
Landfill closure and posiclosire cost $ 15283 % - % (2871 § 12412 % - & 12412
Compensated absences payable 4,980 2,205 {1,698) 5,487 $ 2,205 3,282
Contraciual obligations payable - - - - - -
Capital isases (vehicles) 3.536 4,287 (2.321) 5,502 2,367 3,135
Revenue bonds payabls 497,815 - (6,915} 490,900 7.315 483,585
Unamortized premium on bonds payabie 7,582 . (416) 7.166 415 6,751
Crefarred foss on bond refunding (8.422) - 703 (7.719) (705) (7.014)
Totals $ 520,774 % 6492 $ (13518} 3% 513,748 % 11,597 § 502,151
Component Units
Compensated absences payable 5 1445 % 32z % (175) % 1592 % 32z 8 1,270
Contractual obligations payable 34 - (34) - - ~
$ 1,476 & 322 3 209) § 1,582 % 322 $ 1,270

Governmental activities.

Claims and judgments payable typically have been Yiquidated m the other governmental funds and in the internal service funds. Compensated absences payable have
typically been #iquidated in the General Fund, the Special Tax District-Designated Services Fund, the Special Tax District-Unincorporated Fund, other governmental
funds, and in the intermal service funds. Capital leases have typically been liquigated in the General Fund, ather governmental funds, and the intemat service funds.



The following is a schedute by years of future minimum instaliment purchase payments on capital leases (equipment) in the governmental activities with the present
value of the net minimum payments as of December 31 {in thousands of dollars).

Year Payable Principal Interest Total
2006 $ a869 § 183 3§ 4,082
2007 2,014 69 2,080
2008 824 17 841
2009 4B - 48
Totals 13 6552 & 269 § 8,821

For financial accounting and reporting purposes, all governmental activities bonds refunded (2 total of $122,165,000) are considered defeased and, along with the funds
held in trust are not included in the accompanying financiat statements

The following is a summary of the County's outstanding general obligation bond issues at December 31 (in thausands of dollars):

Year Interest interest Issue Maturity Authorized
Issued  Purpose Rate (%) Dates Date Date and Issued Retired Qutstanding
1992 Refunding issue 6.00 11 7-1 12/01/92 01/01/20 $ 84,775 & 55705 $ 3.070
1998 Jait 5.00 1-1 741 08/01/98 D1/01/20 2,000 - 2,000
2001 Parks 3.50-5.00 B6-1 1241 10/01/01 12/01/15 125,000 31,535 93,465
2003 Refunding issue 3.00-5.00 1-r 71 07/22/03 01/01420 53,295 11,335 41,980
2003 Refunding issue 4.00-5.00 11 71 12/05/03 01/01/20 74,620 2,250 72,370
Totals $§ 319600 § 100825 § 218,885

The following is a summary of general obligation bonds debt service requirements to maturity as of December 31 (in thausands of do#ars});

Year Payable Principal Interest Total
2006 % 159885 § 9783 § 25,774
2007 16,410 8,999 25,409
2008 17,810 8,227 26,037
2009 18,435 7,393 25,828
2010 18,050 6,541 25,591

2014%-2015 86,225 21,473 107,698
2016-2020 44,950 5,450 30,400
Totals $ 218,865 $ 67,872 $ 285737

The County is subject to the laws of the State of Georgia, which limit the amount of net bonded debt (exciusive of revenue bonds) the Courty may have outstanding to
10% of the assessed valuation of taxable property within the County. At year-end, general abligation bonds outstanding, net of amounts avallable in the Debt Servce
Funds, tetaled $208,320,000. The statutory limit at that date was $2,354,400,000, providing a debt margin of $2,145,080,000.
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The following is a summary of the County's cutstanding Certificates of Participation at December 31 (in thousands of dollars):

Year interest Interest Issue Maturity Authorized
Issued Purpose Rate (%) Dates Date Date and Issued Retirad Qutstanding
2003 Office buiding and courthouse  2.25-4.75 6-1 & 12-1 10/14/03 12/01/23 $ 25,000 $ 960 § 24.04C

The fallowing is a summary of Certificates of Participation debt service requirements 10 maturity as of year end {in thousands of dollars):

!nterest
Year Payabie Rate {%) Principat Interest Total
2008 2.25 5 970 % 983 3 1,953
2007 25 095 961 1,956
2008 2875 1.020 937 1,857
2009 3125 1,045 907 1,952
2010 4.0 1,080 874 1,954
2011-2015 4.00-4.50 6,095 3672 9,767
2016-2020 4.20-4 .50 T 490 2,286 9,775
2021-2023 4.625-4.75 5,345 512 5,857
Totals $ 24040 $ 11,132 § 35,172

In July 2005, the Building Authority issued $35.670,000 of DeKalb County Building Autharity Revenue Bonds. the proceeds of which will be used to construct the juvenile justice o

The following is a summany of the County's ouistanding governmental activities revenue bond issues at December 31 (in thousands of doflars):

Year Intarest Interast Issue Maturity Authorized
Issued Purpose Rate (%) Dates Date Date and ssued Retired Qutstanding
2003 Juvenike Justice Center 2.0-5.0 5-18& 12-1 Q7/01/03 12/01/20 $ 15,000 $ 1,170 $ 13,830
2004 Public Safaty and Judicial Facilities 3.0-5.0 6-1& 121 12/26/04 12/01/34 50,000 200 49,100
2005  Juvenile Justice Center 3.0-5.0 6-1& 12-1 07/14/05 12/01/25 35,670 35,670

§ 100670 § 2,070 5 988600

The following is a summary of the County's governmental activities revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity as of December 31 (in thousands of dollars);

Intgrest
Year Payable Rate (%) Principal Interest Total
2006 2.040 $ 2,785 § 4029 § 6,814
2007 2050 2,885 3,940 6,805
2008 2.0-30 2975 3,835 6,810
2009 2.5-3.0 3,060 3,752 6812
2010 2.53.0 3,145 3,663 6,808
2014-2015 26350 17,425 16,617 34,042
2016-202¢ 34040 20,975 13,672 34,047
2021-2025 4.125-50 23.375 8.506 31,881
2026-2030 50 11,025 4.432 15477
2031-2034 5.0 10,970 1,404 12,374

Totals $ 98600 § 63270 % 161,870




Business-type activities:

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum installment purchase payments on capital leases for vehicles in the business-type activities with the present value
of the net minimum payments as of December 31 (in thousands of dollars)

Year Payable Principal interest Total
2006 $ 2,366 5 174 3 2,540
2007 1,783 93 1,886
2008 626 47 663
2009 33s 25 361
2010 351 10 361
2011 30 - 30
Totals $ 5502 % 344 % 5,846

The following is a summary of the County's outstanding business-type aclivities revenue bond 1ssues as of December 31 (in thousands of dollars):

Interest Interest Issue Maturity Authorized Out- Call
Series Rate (%) Dates Date Date and Issued Retired standing Callable Premiums
1997 625 4-1 101 Q7/09/97 10/01/06 3 42,870 $ 36,915 H 5,855 3 -
1999 4.2-5.0 4-1 10-1 05/01/99 10/01/28 96,345 - 96,345 92,955 0-1%
2000 4.5-5.625 4-1 10-1 11/01/00 10/01/35 214,525 4,920 209,605 195,600 0-1%
2003 2550 4-1  10-1 11/18/03 10/01/35 175,865 870 178,985 145875 None
Totals § 533,605 $ 42,705 $ 490,900 $ 434,430

The foilowing is the purpose of each series of the County's outstanding business-type activities revenue bond issues as of December 31

Series Purpose

1987 Refunding issue

1999 Walter reservoir expansion, City of Atlanta Phosphorous Reduction Program

2000 New Filter Plant, sewer plant improvements, refief sewers

2003 Refunding issue, Nancy Creek Tunnel, new Water & Sewer administration buiiding, sewer renovation

The various bond indentures contain significant limitations and restrictions on annual debt service requirements, maintenance of and flow of monies through various
restricted accounts, minimum amounts to be maintained in various sinking funds, and minimum revenue bond coverages. As of year-end, the County believes it was in
compliance with all such significant limitations and restrictions.
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The following is & summary of the County’s outstanding husiness-type activities revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity as of year-end (in thousands Fa2

dollars):
Year
Payable Principal Interest Total
2006 3 7.315 $ 24797 ] 32,112
2007 5,550 24,375 29,925
2008 8.910 24,160 33,070
2009 9,445 23.802 33,247
2010 9.835 23.414 33,249
2011-2015 56,530 109,698 166,228
2016-2020 72,550 53,686 166,236
2021-2025 93,650 73,002 166,652
2026-2030 108,575 46,886 155,461
2031-2035 418,540 18,124 137.664
Totals $ 490,900 % 462944 § 953,844

Capital | eases

The County has entered into 3 multivear lease purchase armangement pursuant to OCGA 36-60-13 for the purchase of certain vehicles, equipment and other capital outlay
projecis. These leases are paid cver periods not 1o exceed five {5) years.

The foliowing is a schedule summarizing leases by the following major asset class (in thousands of dollars):

Equipment Vehicles Total
Governmentai activities: $ 6552 § - 8 6.552
Business-type activities: - 5502 5,502

$ 6552 § 5502 § 12,054

9. Employee Benefits
{A) Defined Benefits Pension Plan Description

The County provides pension benefits for substantially all of its fuil-time and permanent part-time emplayees through a single employer defined benefit plan (the "Plan™).
The Plan is administersd by the DeKalb Caunty Pension Board (the "Board™} composed of seven voting members (the Chief Executive Officer of Dekalb County, two
members elected by County employees, two members selected by the DeKalk County Board of Commissioners, one member elected by County retirees, and one
member appointed by the other voting members of the Board) and twa non-voting members (the County Director of Finance and the County Merit System Director), The
Plan does not issue separate financial statements, The County's payrall for emplovees covered by the Plan for the year was $284,391,000, as compared to a total County
payrall of $301,779,000.



Employees participating prior to September 1, 2005: = The Plan provides retirement benefits of 2 75% of average salary (based on the highest consecutive 36 months of
pay over the last ten years of emplaymant} times years of service with a maximuorm retirement benefit of B2.5% of average salary. Mormal retirement, with at least 10 years
of servica, is at age 55 or older. Early retirement {subject to reductions in benefits) is allowed at age 50 with 10 or more years of service. Employees with 30 years of service
can retire at any age with no reguction in benefits. An employee can retire at age 65 with three or mare years of service

Termination benefits are as follows. Within the first three years of service, the participant's contributions will be returned without interest. After three but less than ten
years of service, tne participant may either withdraw contributions plus interest or leave contributions in the Plan and receive a monthly benefit to commence at

age 65 equal to his accrued benefit as of the dgate of termination. After ten years of service, the participant may either withdraw contributions plus interest or leave
contributions in the Plan and receive a monthly benefit {0 commence at his normal retirement date equal to his accrued benefit as of the date of termination. Such
terminating employee may elect to receive reduced benefits any time after he attains 50 years of age.

New employeas participating on _or after September ¢, 2005:  The Plan provides retirernent benefits of 2.25% of average salary (based on the nighest conseculive 36 months
of pay over the iast ten years of employment) times years of service with a maximum retirement benefit of 67.5% of average salary. Normal retirement, with at least 10 years
of service, is at age 62 or oider. Early retirement {subject to reducticns in benefits) is allowed at age 55 with 10 or more years of service  Empioyees age 55 with 25 years of
service can retire with no reduction in benefits. An employee can retire at age 85 with seven or more years of service.

Termination benefits are as follows. Within the first threa years of service, the participant’s contributions will be returned without interest After three but less than seven
years of service, the participant's contributions plus interest shall be returnad  After seven years of service, the participant may eitner withdraw contributions plus interest
or leave contributions in the Plan and receive a monthly benefit o commence at his normal retirement date equai to his accrued benefit as of the date of termination. Such
terminating employee may elect 1o receive reduced benefits any time after he attains 55 years of age.

Retirement benefits are payable monthly for fife (ten years guaranteed) with sursivar options available subject 10 reduted monmihty benetits. The Plan also provides
disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all cther requirements are established by State statute and by the DeKalb Pension Acl. Any changes to the Plan benefits
must be approved by the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners. Contribution levels to the Plan are determined using ihe actuadal basis specified by statute  Cumrent
contribution teveis, as approved by the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners, are employee 1.5% and County 3.0% of employee earnings The accrual basis of
accounting is used to report the activities of the Pian. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due Benefits and refunds

are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan. Assets are vaiued at fair value, based on quoted market prices, with actuarial valuations of
investments adjusted to market at a 5 year smoothed rate. As of year end, no investment in any one organization represented 5% or more of plan assels. Administrative
costs of the Plan are financed through investment earnings. As of year end, Plan membership was composed of the following:

Ten year vested active employees covered by the Plan 2,325
Three year vested active employees covered by the Plan 1,513
Nonvesied active employees covered by the Plan 2522
Retirees currently receiving normal retirement benefits 2,085
Retirees currently receiving disability benefits 116
Beneficiaries of deceased retirees currentiy receiving benefits 227
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving thermn because of age 314

Tatal members 9,102

(B) Actuarial assumptions

The actuarial accrued liability was computed as part of an actuarial valuation performed as of April 1, 2005. Significant actuarial assumgtions used in the valuation
include: (a) rate of return on investment of present and fulure assets of 8.0% per year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 3.5% for inflation plus 0% 1o
4.3% for merit / seniority based on an age-graduated scale, compounded annually, (c) no postretirement benefit increases were assumed.
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(C} Actuarially Determined Pension Plan Contribution Reguirements and Contribution Made

The Plan's funding policy pravides for actuarially determined contributions at rates that, for individual employees, are a level parcentage of payroll. The contribution

rate for normai cost is determined using the projected unit credit cost method. The required contribution includes the normal cost less amoprtization of the assets in excess
of the actuarial accrued liability. Amortization is taken as a level percentage of payrali over 0.25 to 30 years for various bases. The significant actuarial assumptions

used to compute the actuarially determined contribution requirement are the same as those used to compule the actuarial accrued liability as described above, The total
contributions fo the Plan for the year of §$3,789,000 were sade in accordance with actuarially determined requiremants computed through an actuarial vahiation
performed April 1, 2004. Empiloyer contributions of $2,093,000 represent 9% of the employer annual required contribution. The net pension obligation of $34,957.000
was determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 27. The amortization period for the County's actuarial accrued surplus is open.

Faa

(D) Schedule of Contribyutions as a percentage of salary
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1957 1996
Employee 1.5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 2.50% 2.50%
Employer 3.0% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5-3.25% 3.25%

The Board of Commissioners have approved the following increases in the employee and employer contributions to the Pension Plan:

2008 2007 2006
Employee 3.53% 3.0% 2.5%
Employer 7.0% 5.5% 4.0%

{E

—

Other Past Retirement Benefits
Group haalth benefits are avaiiable 1o all retirees and beneficiaries of retirees with the County paying up to 70% of the totai cost and the retiree paying the remaining

amount. These benefils are provided by the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners each year and are not statutory, contractual, or required by other authority. The total
cost of retiree health benefits (including retirees portions), $15,855,000 for the year, is recognized as an expense in the Intemal Service Funds as claims are incurred.

{F) Deferred Compensation Plan

The County offers its ampioyees an optional deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Imernal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan is availabie to aif County

employees and permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees untit termination, retirement,
death, or unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property ang rights purchased with those amounts, and all income
attributable o those amourts, property, or rights are {until paid or made available to the participant or other beneficlary) solely the property and rights of a Trust created by

the County for the benefit of the participants and administered by third parties. The County has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 32 which required the removal

of plan assets and liabilities from the financial statements of the County.



10. Proprietary Funds

Contracts and agreements

The County has a shared interest in various water poliution control plants with the City of Atlanta, Gwinnett County, Henry County, and Fulton County. Each of these
agreements requires the County to pay a pro rata share of the plants' operating costs and additional capital improvements which may be made by the other equity interest
During the year, the County incurred the following operating costs (no capital costs were incurred) (in thousands of dollars)

R. M. Clayton Plant - City of Atlanta 3 9,673
Big Creek Plant, John's Creek Plant,
Marsh Craek Plant - Futton County 5683
Jackson Craek Plant - Gwinnett County 9581
o G

11. Fund Deficits

12

The Special Tax District - Unincorporated Fund ended the year with a net assets deficit of $954,000. The County will increase this fund's 1ax allocation and reduce the transfer to
the Spetial Tax District - Designated Services in future years ta eliminate this deficit. The Street Light Fund ended the year with a fund baiance deficit of $142,000. The County will
increase charges for these services and reduce expenditures to eliminate this deficit

Risk Management

The County is exposed to various risks of loss retated to torts; theft of, damage 10, or destruction of assets; errors and omissions; law enfercement liability; injuries to
employees; assumed risks for employee benefits; damage to private parties; and natural disasters. By provision of the State Constitution, the County may be immune from
liability for most forms of bodily injury and property damage arising out of its operations, if such lnsses are not insured. it is the policy of the County to utilize immunity as a
legal defense against liability claims whenever the risk of loss is not insured and immunity may be asserted.

DeKalb County has a Risk Management Fund to account for and to finance its purchase of insurance and coverage of uninsured risks of loss when immunity cannot be
asserted. Under this program, the Risk Management Fund finances two reserves: workess' compensation and incurred but unpaid claims undes a self-funded employee
medical benefit program. The County retains the first $500,000 of expense for each ocourrence of workers' compensaticn injuries, and it retains the first $175,060 of medica!
expense claims per year for each covered empioyee under the comprehensive medical insurance plan. Beyond these limits, the County purchases specific excess insurance to
limit further toss. Mo ciaim has ever exceeded the excess limits of the workers' compensation or excess medical insurance policies. Resarves are established for the medical
insurance liabilities based on actuanal projection provided by the plan administrator {Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Georgia) Reserves for workers’ compensation are
established in two manners: (1) an estimate of future expenses for known claims and known reatment needs, and {2) a siatistical projection of incurred but unreported claims,
based on recent histonical experience of loss development in the County's claims.
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The County purchases commercial automaobile liability insurance to cover its automobile, trucks, and other on-road vehicles. It alsc purchases liability coverage for its
helicopter fleet and for airport operations. Beyond the limits of the liability policies, the County assents immunity, and has never had to pay a claim in excess of those policies
Consequently, no reseive is established for these risk exposures.

Buildings and cordents are insured through an "all risk” property damage insurance policy, and the County retains the first $100,000 of each joss, with no aggregate limits.
This retention level is funded by an annual appropriation of $300,000 which, histerically, has proven adequate to cover all claims.

The changes in the habilities for self-insurance for the last four years are as follows {in thousands of dollars)y

2005 2004 2003 2002

Workers' compensation

Incurred claims, net of any changes S 2,952 $ 5,380 § 3,493 2 1,800

Payments (3,244} {3.026) {2.887) (2.411)

Ending balance 7.341 7,633 5,279 4,673
Health and dental:

Incurred claims, net of any changes 57,424 53,831 46,552 39,828

Payments {57,683} {53.803) (45,461) (38,484)

Ending balance 4,382 4.841 5.013 3,922
Total liability for self insurance $§ 11,723 % 12474  § 10,292 & 8,595

13. Interfund Balances and Activity
(A) Balances Due To / Fram Other Funds
Balances due to / from other funds at year end consist of the foliowing (in thousands of dollars):
$ 7,427 Due to the General Fund from other governmental funds representing short-term loans.
892 Due to the General Fund from the General Employee’s Pension fund representing a short-tarm joan.

1,490 Due 1o the Special Tax District Designated Services Fund from the Speciat Tax District Unincorporated Fund representing a short-term loan.
$ 5,800 Total



(B) Transfers to / from Other Funds

Transfers to / from other funds for the year consist of the following:

$ 1,150
19,238
3,741
85214
9,826
1972
1,003

2

1,274
9,748

$ 133,138

Transfer from General Fund to other governmentat funds 1o match federal and state grants.

Transfer from General Fund to other govemnmental funds for capital projects.

Transter from Special Tax District Designated Services Fund to other governmental funds to match federal and state grants.
Transfer from Special Tax District Unincorporated Fund to Special Tax District Designated Services Fund to fund operations
Transfar from other governmental funds 1o General Fund 1o fund programs.

Transfers between other governmental funds for capital projects.

Transfers between other governmental funds to fund programs.

Transfers between other goverrunental funds 1o match federat and state grants.

Transfers between other governmental funds 1o fund debt secvice

Transter from other enterprise funds 1o other governmental funds for capital projects.

14. Commitments And Contingencies

15.

The County Board of Commissioners voted during fiscal year 2003 to approve giving a porlion of the hotel / motet tax received by the County to the DeKalb County Convention and
Visitors Bureau. During the year, the County paid $2,307,186 on this agreement,

Litigation - The County is defendant in various Jega) actions ir the nature of claims for alleged damages to persons and property, civil rights violations, zoning matters, and
other simiar types of actions arising in the course of normal County operations. In the opinion of the County's management and tegal counsel there are no suits pending or

unassertied claims that would nave a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the County,

Grant Contingencies - The County has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor

cannot be determined at this time although the County's management expects such amounts, if any, will not be significant.

Budget Information

The County excesded the feqgal lavel of budgeied expenditwres in the following departments (in thousands of dollars):

These ocverages were caused by unexpected expenditures in these funds during 2005, The hudgets for these departments in 2006 are expected to be sufficient 10 cover

expenditures.

Fund Department Amount
General Law $ 510
Special Revenue - Streetlights Public Works - Transportation 171
Special Revenue - Grant-in-Aid District Attomey 7%
Special Revenue - Grani-in-Aid Workforce Development 1,273
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As mandated by Georgia law, the County mairtains a projecl-length balanced budget for each capital projects fund The foliowing is a summary of each of these funds
project-length budgets (in thousands of doffars)

1987 Health HOST Community 2001
Parks Jail Facilities COPS Capital Greenspace Parks
Bonds Bonds Bands Bonds Projects Prograrn Bonds
Project-length revenues-
Budget $ 155 & 2203 3§ 160 § 12589 8§ 35,181 3 B5 § 62957
Actual 160 2,287 165 12.829 19,851 35 86,748
Project-length expenditures:
Budgaet 155 2.203 160 12,589 35,181 85 82,957
Actual - 14 55 1,545 8973 2 13,661

Building Public Safety

Capital Authority Judicial
Improvement Juvenile Facilities
Projects Court Project Authority Total
Project-length revenues:
Budget $ 67955 ¢ 38,937 $ 25,934 $ 250,156
Actual 61,268 40,750 30,298 234,391

Project-length expenditures:
Budget 67,955 38,937 24,934 250.156
Actual 23,698 T.714 2,243 57,805



16. Fund Balance Reserves

Reserved fund balances in the various funds are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Reserved for encumbrances H

Reserved for inventories
Tota! reserved H

Special Tax
District - Special Tax Other Total
Designated District - Governmental Governmental
General Services  Unincorporated Funds Funds
8031 § 318% % 54 § 34550 $ 45824
9 - - 8 . 9
8,040 $ 3,18% $ 54 $ 34,550 3 45,833
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1. Employee Benefits

DEKALB COUNTY, GEORGIA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31, 2005

{Unaudited)

{A} Unaudited Schedule of Funding Progress (in thousands of dollars where applicable):

Actuarial value of plan assets
Actuarial accrued liability
Percentage funded

Assets in excess/shortage of acluarial accrued liability

Annual covered payroll

Assets in excess/shortage of actuarial accrued liability

as a % of annual covered payroll

Vatuation Date

F50

{B) Unaudited Schedule of Employer Contributions (in thousands of dollars where applicable):

Annual required contribution / annual pension cost

Annual employer contributions made

Interesi on net pension obligation

Annual required contribution adjustment

Amortization

Pension cost

Change in net pension obligation

Net pension obligation, end of year

Percentage of annual employer contributions made ta
annual required confributions

4-1-2005 4-1-2004 4-1-2003 4-1-2002 4.1-2001 4-1-2000
S 1429397 $1.137597 § 1,122,066 §1,161,884 §1,002.073 § 895071
$ 1,140,305 $1,038214 § 983393 $ 978606 $ 851877 § 790,994

99.04% 109.57% 114.10% 118.73% 117.74% 125,80%
(10.908) § 99383 & 138673 § 183.278 $ 151096 § 204077
$ 266022 5 261248 $ 254250 § 240748 § 206419 § 196.590
-4.10% 38.04% 54.54% 73.39% 73.20% 103.81%
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
§ 22322 § 16624 § 6270 §$ 13,800 $ 1188 § 2264
$ 2093 $ 1297 8 1208 $ 1271 $ 1184 § 1,089
$ 987 § 250y 675) $ (1.745) § (1791 § (1,932
$ 1593 % (380) $  (1014) $ (2597) $ (2338 § (2,522)
7.74 8.21 8.3t 8.39 957 9.57
$ 21716 % 16754 & 6603 S 14653 S5 1,735 § 2,854
§ 19622 § 15458 § 5310 % 13382 § 571§ 1766
$ 31957 0§ 12,335 S (3.423) % (8433) § (21,815) $ {(22,38H)
9.38% 7.80% 20.70% 9.21% 97.98% 48.10%



DEKALB COUNTY, GEORGIA

COMBINING STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
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DEKALB COUNTY, GEORGIA

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable (net)
Accounts receivable (net)
Due from other governments

Total agsets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable
Other accrued liabilities
Advance payments and deposits
Due to other funds
Due 1o others
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities
Fund balances:
Reserved
Unreserved
Tota!l fund balances

Total tiabilities and fund balances

DeKaib County, Georgia

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

December 31, 2005
{in thousands of doliars)

Special Debt Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Service Project Governmental

Funds Funds Funds Funds

28,128 $ 15,559 § 179,176 $ 222 863

5413 870 - 6,283

931 - - 931

7,723 - 2,825 10,548

42,195 16,429 182,001 240,825

3,058 - 2,454 5513

1,742 - . 1,742

451 - . 451

7.427 - - 7,427

B41 - - 841

1,142 518 696 2,356

14,462 518 3,150 18,130

1,350 - 33,200 34,550

26,383 15,911 145,851 187,945

27,733 15,911 178,851 222 495

42,185 $ 16,422 $ 182,001 $ 240,625
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CeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
(in thousands of dollars)

Special Debt Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Service Project Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds
REVEMNUES
Taxes 3 75,097 % 28,389 - 3 103,456
Licenses and permits 10,097 - - 10,087
Use of money and property 6850 264 5,441 6,355
Intergovernmental 31,478 - 16,180 47,658
Fines and farfeitures 2,264 - - 2,264
Charges for services 16,955 - - 16,955
Miscellaneaus 1,663 - 1,283 2,946
Total revenues 138,204 28,653 22,804 189,761
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Genera! government 6,384 - 6,384
Public safety 59,318 - - 59,318
Civit and criminal court system 1,159 - - 1,159
Public works 15,023 - - 15,023
Community development 13,457 - - 13.457
Parks and recreation 1,783 - - 1,783
Health and welfare 23,495 . - 23,495
Miscelianeous 3,347 - - 3,347
Debt service - 27,202 1,838 29,040
Bond issuance costs - - 624 624
Capital outiay:
General government - - 4167 4,167
Public safety - - 2,461 2,461
Civil and criminal court system - - 8,245 8,245
Public works - - 23,545 23,545
Parks and recreation - - 13,004 13,004
Health and weliare - - 55 §5
Total expenditures 123,966 27,202 53,939 205,107
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
aver (under} expenditures 14,238 1,451 (31,035} {15,346)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES #USES)
Proceeds of bond issuance - - 35,870 35,670
Premiusm on bond issuance - . 637 637
Contractual purchase obligations 1,618 - - 1,616
Transfars in 5,867 1,274 30,957 35,098
Transfers out (10.831 ) - (3,246} (14.077)
Totaf other financing sources {uses) {3.348) 1,274 64,018 61,944
Net change in fund balance 10,890 2.725 32,983 46,598
Fund balance - beginning 16,843 13,186 145,868 175,897
Funtd batance - ending $ 27,733 § 15,911 178,851 ] 222,495
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to
expenditure for specified purposes.
The following Nonmaijor Special Revenue Funds are used by the County:
Development Fund - to account for operations of the County’s development department, whose financing is provided by license and permit fees.
PEG Support Fund - to account for monies collected from cable companies to provide infrastructure for government access channels.
County Jail Fund - to account for monies collected as a result of a 10% penalty on certain court cases, which are used for the construction, operation, and staffing of
County detention facilities.
Victim Assistance Fund - to account for fines assessed in State and Supenor Courts in DeKalb County which are used for victim assistance programs,
Recreation Fund - to account for the operations of various recreational activities provided by the County whose financing is through user fees.
Juvenile Services Fund - to account for monies collected under Georgia law for probation services to juvenile offenders which are used for providing
treatment to juvenile offenders.
Drug Abuse Treatment and Education Fund - to account for monies collected under Georgia law related to additionai penalties on controlled substances offenses
which are used for drug abuse treatment and education programs relating to controfled substances and marijuana.
Law Enforcement Confiscated Monies Fund - to account for monies confiscated under Georgia law by DeKalb law enforcement officers related to controlled
substances offenses which are used to defray the cost of complex investigations and to purchase equipment relating 1o said investigations.
Street Lights Fund - to account for street light assessments on County residents and businesses which are used for providing street light services for the
County's citizens.
Speed Humps Fund - to account for speed hump assessments an County residents which are used for providing speed hump services for the County's citizens.
Emergency Telephone System Fund - to account for monies collected under Georgia law by the telephone company on behalf of DeKalb County which are
used for providing emergency 911 services to residents of the County.
Grant-in-Aid Fund - to account for operations of various grant-in-aid programs. Financing is provided by contributions from various governmental agencies. Such
contributions are used only to finance expenditures permitted by the various grant-in-aid contracts and agreements.
2001 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund - to account for year 2001 local law enforcement block grant monies which are used to support law enforcement in the County.
2002 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund - to account for year 2002 local law enforcement block grant monies which are used to support law enforcement in the County.
2003 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund - to account for year 2003 local law enforcement block grant monies which are used to support law enforcement in the County.
2004 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund - to account for year 2004 local law enforcement block grant monies which are used to support law enforcement in the County.
2005 Justice Assistance Grant Fund (formerly LLEBG) - to account for year 2005 iocal law enforcement block grant monies which are used to support faw enforcement in the G
Fire Fund - to account for operations of the County's fire depariment whose financing is provided by a specific annual property tax levy. Such property taxes are
used to provide fire protection for all residents of the County not protected by municipal fire departments.
Hospital Fund - to account for contractual payments made by the County to the Fulton DeKalb Hospital Authority whose financing is provided by a specific annual
property tax levy.
Hotel/Motel Tax Fund - to account for taxes collected by hotels and motels within the County which are used for the promotion of tourism and convention trade within
the County.
Law Library - 1o account for fees received from State and Superior Courts and used to finance the Law Library's operation and purchase of reference materials.
Alternative Dispute Resolution - to account for fees received from State, Magistrate, Probate, and Superior Courts and used to fund dispule resolution matters.
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Dekals County, Georgia

Noomasor Special Revenue Funds

Combrung Balance Sheet

December 21, 2005

(in thousands of dollars)

Law
Brug Abuse Enforeement Emergency
PEG Victim Juvenile Treatrnent Canfiscaled Streel Speed Telephone
Developrment Support Assistance Recrealion Senvices & Education Momies Lights Humps Systern Grant-n-Aid
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,800 $ 1822 $ 596 $ 171 H 77 3 43 3 2,651 $ - 662 3 11,643 $ -
Taxes receivable (net) - - - - . - - - - - -
Accounts receivable (nat} - - - - - - - 153 7 617 -
Due trom gther govemnments - - - - - - - - - - 7.723
Total assels 2,400 1,622 596 71 7 43 2,651 153 669 12,260 7.723
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liablites
Accounts and contracls payable 20 181 - 38 - - 445 - - 531 822
Qahar actrued haidies 240 - - 25 - - - 3 - - 258
Advance payments and deposns - - - - - - 451 - - . -
Due o other funds - - - - R - - 252 - - £,556
Due o others - - - - N - 637 - - - -
Deferred revenue - - - - - - . - - . 87
Yotal liabiMties 1,160 181 - 63 - - 1,533 295 - 531 7723
Fund palances
Reserved 297 41 23 74 2 - 108 8 - a7 -
Unreserved 943 1.400 573 34 75 43 1.010 (150) 668 11,702 -
Total fund balances 1.240 1.441 596 108 T 43 1.118 {142} 669 11,729 -
Total habibes ang fund balances $ 2,400 3 1,622 $ 596 $ 171 $ 77 $ 43 $ 2,651 $ 153 $ 663 $ 12,260 $ 7,723
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Combining Baiance Sheet
December 31, 2006

{in thousands of dollacs}

{contmued)
Tolat
Nohma or
2001 Local Law 2002 Local Law 2003 Local Law 2004 Local Law 2005 Justice Allemative Special
Enforcement  Enforcement Enforcement Enforcement Assislance Hole! Law Dispute Revenue
Block Grant Block Grant Black Grant Block Grant Grant Fire Hosputal Wotet Tax Library Resotution Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents % 1 § 14 3 92 5 146 § 34 g 6,347 3 &8 g 230 3 160 $ 1171 3 28,128
Tauxes recervable (net) - - - - - 35498 1,555 162 - - 5413
Accounts receivabie (net) - - - - - 103 - - 5 45 931
Due from other govemments - - - - - - - - - - 7,723
Total assets 1 14 92 148 34 10,146 1,623 302 166 1.216 42,195
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liatulities:
Acoounts and contracts payabla - - 2 B - 120 - - - - 3059
Other accrued Habilites - - - - - 1,216 - - - - 1,742
Advance payments and deposits - - - - - - - - - - 451
Due fa other funds - - - - - - - - . 578 7427
Dug to others - . - - - - . N 4 . 841
Deferred ravanue - - - - - 700 355 - - - 1142
Total liabilities - - 2 - - 2,038 355 - 4 578 14,482
Fund balances:
Reserved - - 119 - - 651 - - - - 1.350
Unreserved T 14 {29) 146 34 7.458 1,268 382 162 637 26,383
Total fund balances 1 14 S0 146 34 6110 1.268 382 162 £37 27733
Total liatxlities and fund balances 3 1 5 14 $ 82 $ 146 $ 34 $ 10,146 3 1623 % 382 H 166 H 1216 § 42188
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REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permils

Use of money and proparty
Intergovemmental

Fines and forfeilures
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current.
General government
Pubiic safety
Crvil and cnminal court systam
Public works
Communrty development
Parks and recreahon
Health and welfare
Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess (deficigncy) of revenues

aver (under) expenditures

QTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)}

Contractual purchase obligahions
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total ather inancing sources (uses)

Met change in fund balance
Fund halance - bagonung

Fund balance - ending

OeKalb Counly, Geargia

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes i Fund Balance

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

{in thousands of doltars)

F58

Law
Drug Abuse Enfarcement Emergancy
PEG County Victim Juvenilg Treatment Confiscaled Strest Speed Telephone
Development Suppart Jail Assistance Recreation Services & Educalion Monigs Lights Humps System
3 - § - ] - - § - $ - 3 - $ - - $ -
10.097 - - - - - - . - -
44 60 - 10 1 - 81 - 15 331
- Eil 100 - - - ] - - -
- - 1511 722 - ki - - - -
74 - - - 1,300 =] - - 3,192 224 12,096
585 86 - - - - - - - -
10,800 146 1,681 822 1,310 70 31 289 3.192 239 12,447
. 288 - - - - . - - - -
- - - - - - - 400 - - 1,713
- - - 201 - ] - 101 - - -
11,449 - - - - - - 3573 1 -
- - - 1.267 - - - -
11,449 288 - 201 1,287 g - 501 3.573 1 1,713
(649} {142) 1,681 621 13 g1 31 488 {381} 238 10,734
1,616 - - - - - - - - - -
- 1.581) (530} - . {1,002) - - (7.715)
1,616 - (1.581) {530} - - {1.002) - - (7.715)
967 1142) - 21 13 61 a1 514) {381) 238 3019
273 1,583 505 85 16 12 1,632 238 431 8,710
$ 1.240 $ 1,441 g - 56 $ 108 77 g 43 3 1,118 3 (142) 669 $ 11,729

{continued)



REVENUES
Taxes

Licenses and permils

Use of money and praperty
Intergovernmenta|

Fines and torfeitures
Chargaes for senaces
Miscellanegus

Total revenuas

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Ganeral governrment
Pubiic safety
Civil and criminal court system
Public works
Community davelopment
Parks and recreation
Heattn and wettare
Miscellansgus
Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

THER FINANCING SOURC USES)
Contraciua! purchase abligations
Transfers in
Transfers oul

Total other finanoing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning
Furd balance - ending

CeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
(in thousands of doilars)

[continued)
Towat
Nonmagor
2001 Local Law 2007 Local Law 2003 Local Law 2004 Local Law 2005 Justce Alternative Special
Enforcement Enforcement Enforcement Assisiance Hatel s Law Dispute Revenue
Granl-in-Aid Block Grant Block Grant Block Grant Fire Hospral Motel Tax Library Resclution Funds

H - - H - $ - $ - 51175  § 21,504 z.328 - 3 -~ § 750087
- - - - - - - - - 10,087

. - 5 4 - 48 - - 2 29 650
26,637 - - - - 2,619 1.148 - - 31.478
- - - - - . - - - 2,284

- - - - - - - - 16,955

212 - - - - 113 - - 83 584 1,663
26,849 - 5 4 - 53,951 22,742 2328 85 613 138,204
4460 - - - B - - 1,936 - - 6,384
8,286 20 64 46 - 48,789 - - - - 59,318
848 R . . - . - - 1,158

- - - - - . - - - - 15,023
13,457 - - - - - - - - 13,457
486 - - - - - - - B - 1.783
1,762 - - - - 21,733 - - 23,495
2,680 - - - - - - - 8 587 3,347
31,679 20 64 46 - 48,789 21,733 1,936 80 587 123,966
(4.830) 20 (59) {42) - 5,162 1.008 362 5 26 14,238
- - - - - 1616

4,833 - - - 34 1,000 - - - 5,867
(3 - - - - (10.831)
4,830 - - 34 1,000 - - - (3.348)
- {20} 159} 423 35 6,162 1,009 382 g 26 10,890

- 34 149 188 1,948 258 - 157 611 16,843

% - 14 $ 240 ] 148 $ 34 8110 $ 1.268 382 162 637 § 27,733
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CeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Non-GAAP Budget Basis (in thousands of dollars)

F60

Cevelopment PEG Suppott
Actual Variance with Actual Variance with
Final Amounts Final Budget Finai Amounts Finaf Budget
Budgeted (Budgetary Over Budgeted (Budgetary Qver
Amounts Basis) {Under]) Amounts Basis} {Under)
Revenues:
Licenses and permits $ 11,533 $ 10097 $ (1.436) $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental - - - - - -
Charges for services 5 75 70 - - -
Investment income 25 37 12 20 54 34
Miscellaneous 100 22 {78) 150 86 __(684)
Total revenues 11,663 10,231 (1,432) 170 140Q {30y
Expenditures:
Current:
General government - - - 1,779 315 {1,464)
Public works - development 12,517 9,478 {3.039) - - -
Total expenditures 12,517 9,478 (3,039) 1,779 315 (1.,464)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (854) 753 1,607 {1.609) (175) 1,434
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers out - - - - - -
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other sources
over expenditures and other uses {854) 753 1,607 {1.609} {175) 1,434
Fund balance, beginning of year 854 843 (11) 1,609 1,609 -
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ 1,596 3 1,596 $ - $ 1,434 ] 1,434
Explanation of differences between budget and GAAP:
Deficiency of revenues and other socurces over expenditures
and gther uses - budget basis 753 {175)
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Due to revenues:
Accrued receivabies 12-31-2005 7 6
Due to expenditures:
Accrued payables 12-31-2004 570 27
Accrued payables 12-31-2005 {363} -
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 967 § 142

{continued)



DeKall: County, Georgia
Nenmajor Spacial Revenue Funds
Schedute of Revenuas, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Non-GAAP Budget Basis (in thousands of dollars)

tcantinued)
County Jail Victim Assistance Recraation
Actual Variance with Actuai Varance with Actyal Variance with
Final Amounts Final Budget Finat Amounts Finai Budget Final Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted (Budgeatary Qver Budgeted {Budgetary Over Budgeted (Budgetary Over
Amounts Basis) {Undar) Amounts Basis) {Under) Amounts Basis) {Under)
Revenues:
Intergovernrnental s 107 % 70 ¥ (AN 3 453 5 100 $ (353) $ - % - % -
Charges for services - - - - - - 1,895 1,300 {595)
Fines and forfeitures 1,739 1511 {228) 900 T3 (177) - -
Investment income - - - - - - - 9 9
Misceftanedus - - - - - - - - -
Total revenues 1,846 1,581 265 1,353 823 {530) 1,89% 1,309 (586)
Expenditures:
Current:
Civil and criminal court system - district attarmey - - - BES 284 (581} . - -
Parks and racreation - - - - - - 2,062 1.344 (718)
Total expendituras - - - 865 284 {584} 2,082 1.344 _{718)
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expendihires 1,846 1,581 {265) 488 539 51 (167) {35} 132
Other financing sourees (uses):.
Transfers out {1,846) ___{1.581) 265 {1,076) 530 546 - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources
over expenditures and cther uses - - - (588) 9 597 {167) (35) 132
Fund baiance, beginning of year - - - 588 588 - 167 167 -
Fund batance, end of year $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 597 $ 597 3 - H 132 $ 132

Explanation of differences between budget ang GAAP!
Deficiency of revenues angd other sources over expenditures
and other uses - budget hasis - g (35}
Differances - budget tc GAAP:
Due to revenues.
Accrued recsivadles 12-31-2006 - -
Due to expenditures
Accnred payables 12-31-2004 - 82

72

Accrued payaoles 12-31-2005 - . {25)

Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ - 5 91 5 13
—_— e e

{cortinued) Fg1



Revenues:
intergovermmental
Charges for services
Fings and forfeitures
Investment income
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety - police
Civit and criminal court system - sheriff
Civit and eriminal court system - juvenile court
Civil and crimiral court system - district attorney
Health and welfare
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expengitures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Yransfers out
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other sources
over expenditures and other uses
Fund balance. beginnirg of year
Fund balance, end of year

Explanation of differences between budget ang GAAP,
Deficiency of reverues and other sources over expandiiures
and other uses - budget basis
Differences - budget to GAAP-
Due to revenues:
Accrued receivables 12-31-2005
Due to expenditures:
Accrued payables 12-31-2004
Accrued payables 12-31-200%
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis

Nonmajor Speciat Revenue Funds

DeKalb County, Georgia

Schedule of Revenuas, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Non-GAAP Budget Basis {in thousands of dollars}

(centinued)
Juvenile Services Drug Abuse Treatment & Education
Actual Variance with Actual Varance with
Final Amiounts Final Budget Final Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted (Budgetary Over Budgeted {Budgetary Ovar
Amounts Basis) {Under) Amounts Basis) {Under}

- § - $ - -] - $ - 5 -

71 70 (5 - - -
- . - 65 23 (32)
- 1 1 1 {2 {3}
71 71 - 86 31 (35}

26 10 {78 - - .
- - - 169 G4 78)
86 10 (76} 164 §1 (78)

{15} 61 76 (103) (60) 43

(15} 61 76 (103) (80) 43

15 16 1 103 103 -

- ] 77 $ 77 $ - $ 43 $ 43

61 (60}
- 81
§ il

(continued}

Fg2

Law Enforcement Confiscated Monies

Actual Variance with
Final Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted (Budgetary Over
Amounts Basis) {Under)
$ o8 5 908 $ .
- 74 74
908 982 74
1.571 915 (656}
302 a2 (270)
222 112 {110}
2,095 1,059 (1.036)
{1,187} {77} 1,110
(1,803) (1,002) 1
{2.180) (1,079) 1,111
2,190 2,190 -
$ - $ 1,111 $ 1,911
{1,079)
7
558
$ 514



Revenues:
Charges for services
Investment income:
Total revenues
Expenditures-
Current:
Public safety
Public wotks - transportation
Public works - roads and drainage
Total expenditures
Excess {daficiency) of revenuss over expenditures
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers out
Exgess {deficiency) vf revenues and other sources
over expenditures and other uses
Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

Explanation of differences between budget and GAAP:
Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expenditures
and other uses - hudget basis
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Due o revenues:
Accrued receivables 12-31.2004
Accried receivables 12-31-2005
Due to expenditures:
Actrued payavles 12-31-2004
Accried payables 12-21-2005
Net changa in fund balance - GAAP basis

DeKalb County, Georgia
MNonrmajor Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Enged December 31, 2005

Non-GAAP Budget Basis (in thousands of dollars)

(continued)
Street Lights _Speed Humps Emergency Telephone System
Actal Variance with Actual Variance with Actual Variance with
Final Amounts Final Budget Final Amounts Final Budget Final Amounts Finat Budget
Budgeted {Budgetary Over Budgeted {Budgetary Over Budgeted (Budgetary Over
Armounts Basis) (Under) Amaunts Basis} {under; Amounts Basis) (Under)
3,100 3 3,219 H 119 13 150 $ 217 H 67 $ 11,204 $ 12,379 $ 1,175
1 {8) (6) 2 13 11 90 308 216
3,101 3,214 113 152 230 78 11,254 12,685 1,391
- - - - - - 10,419 1,182 {9,237)
3,403 3,574 171 - - - . - -
- - - 585 3 (582) - . -
3,402 3574 171 585 3 {582} 10,419 1,182 (8,237)
(302) {360} {58) (433) 227 660 8718 11,502 10,828
- . - - - . (8.686) {7,715} 971
(202) {360) {54) (433) 227 660 {7.811) 3,788 11,599
302 67 (235) 423 433 - 7.811 7.811 -
- $ (283} 8§ (233) 3 - $ 660 $§ 860 § - $ 11,599 3 11,599
(360} 227 3788
(175} - {900)
153 9 662
3 2 .
{2 - 531
$ (381 3 238 $ 3,019

{continued}
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Revenues
inlergovernmental
Investment income
Miscellanecus
Tolal revenues
Expenditures.
Current
General government.
Finance
Workfarce development
Totai gereral government
Pubhe safety
Police
Fire and rescue services
Total public sately
Civil and criminal court sysiem
Shenfl
Juvenile coun
Superior court
State court
Solicitor
Dustrict attorney
Magistrate court
Total civil and Crirminal court system
Pubhe warks - develgprent
Commurity development
Parks and recreation
Health and welfare
Public health
Senior tiizens serices
Family and children services
Total health and weifarg
Misceflaneous
Tatal expenditures
Excess (deficency) of revenues
over expenditures
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other
Scurces over expenditures and other uses
over axpenditures and other uses
Fund batance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

Explanation of differences between budget and GAAP
Defciency of revenues and other sources over expendifures
and other uses - budget basis
Differences - budget o GAAP
Due o revenues
Accrued recewvables 12-31-2004
Accrued receivabies 12-31-2005
Bue to expenditures
Accrued payabies 12-21-2004
Accrued payables 12-31-2005
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis

Nenmapor Special Revenue Funds

DeKalb County. Geargia

Schedule of Revenyes. Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended Oecember 31, 2005

Mon-GAAP Budget Basis (in thousands of dallars)
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{continubed)
Gaantan-Aig 2001 Locas Law Enforcement Block Grant 2002 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant
Agtua! Variance with Actual Variance wih Actuat Vanance with
Final Amounts Finat Budget Final Amounts Final Budget Final Amounts Final Buaget
Budgeted {Budgetary Over Budgeted {Buagetary Qver Budgeted {Budgetary Over
Amounts Basws} {Undery Amounts Basis) {Ynder; Amounts Basis. {Under
5 75,364 § 12433 5 (62,931} 3 - 5 - H - H - 3 (21) 3 (21)
- - - - - - Z - 2
31,850 213 (31,737} 1 - {1] 19 - {(19)
107.314 12,546 (94 6B} 1 . ) 21 @) 32y
3) (5) (2} - - - - - -
2,967 4,240 1,273 - - B - - -
2,964 4,235 1,271 - . - - . .
8,022 7,939 (1.083) 1 . m 35 1} (as)
1,617 493 {1.024) - - ) . . .
10,539 5.432 12107} 1 - {1} 35 O R/
17 - N - - - - .
BAS 128 (756) . . - - .
672 340 (332} - - - - -
14 6 8y - - - - - .
444 232 212) - - - - - -
88 167 78 - - - R R
[ - 6 - - - - .
2,178 B74 (1.252) - . . .
365 . A - - : - - -
25,432 13,609 {11,823} - - - - - N
1.477 478 (995} - - , - - )
16 2 (14) . - - - R
5178 3.039 2,139) - - - - .
1.890 1,753 137, - - . . . R
7,084 4,754 {2.25C) . B - B . N
64,367 378 163,089} B . . . - .
118,154 32,800 (81,354 1 &) 3 [ 28
{6.840) {20,154) {13,314y - - - {14) {20) (5
6,840 4,833 (2.007) - 14 - {14}
- 589 699 - - - - - -
- {14.622¢ (14,622} - - - {20 (20}
- (5,898) (5,898) - 1 1 - 34 kY
§ - § {20520} E (20,5201 % - 5 3 $ hl 3 - 3 14 3 14
(14,622} - 20}
16.858) - .
22,714 -
60 - -
542 -
3 1.652 3 - $ (20}

{conbnued)



DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year £ndec December 31, 2005

Non-GAAP Bugget Basis |in thousands of dollars}

{continued)
2003 [ ocai L.aw Enforcement Block Grant 2004 Loca! Law Enforcement Block Grant 2005 Justice Assistance Grant
Actual Variance with Aclual Vanance with Actuat Variance with
Final Amounts Final Budget Final Amounts Finat Budget Final Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted (Budgetary Qver Budgeted {Budgetary QOwver Budgeted (Bucgetary Qver
Amounts Basis} {Under} Amounts Basis) {Under} Amoums Basis) {Under)
Revenuas:
Property taxes .3 - $ - $ - 3 . 3 - H . .3 - $ - $ -
Sales taxes - - - . - - R . R
Intergovernmantal - - - - 188 1a8 - - -
Charges for services - - - - - - - - -
Investment income 4 & 1 - 5 5 - - -
Miscellaneous 116 - (116) 188 - 188 - - -
Total revenues 120 5 {115) 188 193 & - - -
Expenditures:
Curmrant:
Public safety - police 388 182 {206) 188 45 (142} - - -
Public safety - fire and rescue services - - - - - - - -
Total expenditures 388 182 (206) 188 46 142 - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (268} (177} 91 - 147 147 . - -
Other financing sources (usas):
Transfers in - - - - - - - 34 34
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources
over expenditures and other uses (268) (177) 91 - 147 147 - 34 24
Fund bafance, beginning of year 268 268 - - - - - - -
Fund balance, end of ysar $ - 3 o1 5 91 5 - $ 147 $ 147 3 - 5 34 3 M

Explanation of differences between budget and GAAP:
Deficiency of revenues and other sources over axpendilures
and other uses - budget basis (177) 147 34
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Due t; revenuas:
Accrued receivables 12-31-2004 - {189) -
Accrued receivables 12-31-2005 - - .
Deferred revenues 12-31-2004 - - .
Deferred revenues 12-31-2005 - - -
Due te expenditures:

Accrued payables 12-31-2004 118 .
Accrued payables 12-31-2005 4] - -
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis § 58 5 42) 3 34

(continued)
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Revenues:
Property taxes
Saies taxes
Intergovemmental
Charges for services
Inyestmant income
Miscellanecus
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current
General government
Health and welfare - hospital

Public safety - fire and rescue services

Total expenditures

DeKalb County. Georgia

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Far the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Non-GAAFP Budget Basis (in thousands of dollars}

F66

53,438 \
Excess {deficiency} of reverues over expenditures 4.679) 470

Qther financing sources (uses):
Transfers in

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources

over expenditures and other uses
Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

Exptanation of differences between budget and GAAP:
Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expenddures

and other uses - budget basis
Dnfferences - hudget to GAAP:
Due to revenues:

Accrued receivables 12-31-2004
Accrued receivables 12-31-2005
Deferred revenues 12-31-2004

Deferred revenues 12-31-2005
Due te expenditures:
Accrued payabies 12-31-2004
Accrued payabtes 12-31-2005
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis

(continued)
Fire Hospital Hatel \ Motel Tax
Actual ~~ Variance with Actual Variance with Aclual  Vanance with
Final Amounts  Final Budget Final Amounts Final Budget Finat Amounts  Final Budget
Budgeted  (Budgetary Qver Budgeted (Budgetary Cver Budgsted [(Budgetary Over
Amounts Basis) {Under} Armaurts Basis} {Under) Armouynts Basis) (Under)
$ 34,075 $ 35,192 $ 1117 $ 13,767 $ 15425 $ 1,658 $ - § - H -
13,581 16,182 2,501 5,190 6,283 1.103 - - -
971 2615 1,644 - - - 2,400 2,338 (61}
75 - {75 2,541 1,148 (1,383) - - -
51 18 ‘i“_; - {135) {135) - - -
5] 893 3 - - - - - .
48750 53100 5341 27,498 2273 1233 Za00 2339 )]
. R - - - . 2,609 2,317 (292}
- - - 21.605 21,600 {5) - - -
53,438 49,650 3,748 - - - - - -
35690 ——(347—_)' (3748} 1805 21600 gS) 2609 23T :%%ZI
! (107) 7731 1, ifﬁgi 27
1,000 1,000 - - - - - - -
(3,679) 3,410 9,088 {107y 11431 1,238 {209) 22 23
31679 3878 - 107 107 - 209 209 -
5410 1,131 22
{1.285) (572) 72
951 385 161
B85 420 -
(700) {355) R
213 - 381
{1,230} - -
5 6,162 $ 1,009 § 392



DeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

The following Nonmajor Debt Service Funds are used by the County:

Building Authority Revenue Bonds Debt Service Fund - to account for rental and other revenues used to fund the principal and interest

requirements on revenue bonds issued by the Building Authority.

2001 Parks General QObligation Bonds Debt Service Fund - to account for taxes levied to fund the principal and interest requirements

on the 2001 general obligation parks bonds.

Other General Obligation Bonds Debt Service Fund - to account for taxies levied to fund the principal and interest requirements on all

other general obligation bond issues of the County.
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Taxes receivable (net)
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUIND BALANCE
Liabrlities:
Accounts and contracts payable
Deferred revenue
Tolal Liabilities

Fund balance

Total fiabilities and fund balances

REVENUES

Taxes

Use of money and property
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

DeKalb County, Geargia
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2005
{in thousands of dollars)

Building 2001 Parks
Authority General Cther Generai Total Nonmajer
Revenue Bonds Coligation Bonds Obligaticn Bonds Debt Service
Debt Service Debl Service Debt Service Funds
$ 233 3 3,022 ) 12,304 3 15,550
- 308 472 870
233 3,420 12,778 16,429
- 222 286 518
- 222 296 518
233 3,198 12,450 15.911
$ 233 § 3,420 1] 12,776 ] 16,429

DeKaib County, Georgia
Nonmaijor Debt Service Funds
Combining Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Far the Year Ended December 31, 2005

{in thousands of dollars)

Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses}
et change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Building 2001 Parks
Authority General Cther General Total Nonmajor
Revenue Bonds Chbiigation Bonds Chbligation Bonds Cebt Service
Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Funds
$ - 3 13,421 3 14,968 $ 28,389
32 116 116 264
32 13,537 15,084 28,853
1,077 12,005 14,120 27,202
{1,045) 1,632 964 1,451
1.274 - 1,274
1.274 - - 1,274
229 1,532 964 2,725
4 1,666 11.516 13,186
$ 233 $ 3.198 $ 12.480 $ 15.911
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DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Non-GAAP Budget Basis (in thousands of dollars)

Budding Authonty Revenue 2001 Parks Generai Obiigation Other General Obligation
Bonds Debt Service Bonds Bebt Service Bonds Debt Service
Actual Variance with Aclual Variance with Actual Variance with
Final Amounts Final Budget Final Amounts Final Budget Final Amounts Final Budgel
Budgeted {Budgetary Over Budgeted {Budgetary Qver Budgeted {Budgetary Qver
Amounts Basis) {Under} Amounts Basis) {Under) Amounts Basis) Unger)
Revenues:
Property taxes $ - ] - $ - $ 12,501 5 13385 $ 8B4 5 14158 $ 14947 8 789
investrment inceme - - - 76 103 27 35 75 40
Miscellaneous 1421 32 {1,089 - - - - - -
Total revenues 1121 32 {1,089) 12,577 13,488 911 14,193 15022 829
Expenditures:
Debt service 1125 1,077 (48} 14,104 12,006 {2.098) 14,344 14,057 (287)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (2) {1.045) {1,041} {1,527) 1,482 3,009 (151) 965 1,118
Excess {deficiency} of revenues and other
sources over expenditures and other uses {4) {1,045} (1.041) {1,527) 1.482 3,009 {151} 965 1,116
Fund balance, beginning of year 4 4 - 1,627 1,527 - 151 151 -
Fund balance, end of year 5 - 8 (1041 5 (1041 3 - 5 3009 _§ 3009 $ 08 e 8 1116

Explanation of differences between budgel and GAAP:
Deficiency of revenues and other sources over expenditures
and other uses - budget basis (1,045) 1,482 985
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Due to revenues:

Accrued receivables 12-31-2004 - (407) (504)

Accrued receivables 12-31-2005 1,273 411 513

Deferred revenues 12-31-2004 . 268 343

Deferred revenues 12-31-2005 - {222) (296)

Due 10 expenditures:

Debt service payment due 12-31-2004 - - (11.210)

Debt service payment due 12-31-2005 - - 11,147
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 228 $§ 1532 S 964
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DeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources 1o be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities for the

County's governmental funds.
The following Nenmajor Capital Projects Funds are used by the County:

1987 Parks Bonds Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 1987 General Qbligation Bond issue and the related capital expenditures for
parks.

Jail Bonds Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 1981 General Obligation Bond issues and the related capitat expenditures for a new
County jail.

Health Facilities Bonds Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 1993 General Obligation Bond issue and the related capital expenditures
for health facilities,

2001 Parks Bonds Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 2001 General Obligation Bond issue and the related capital expenditures for parks.
HOST Capital Projects Fund - to account for the proceeds from the homestead sales tax revenues designated for capital projects.
Capital Improvement Projects Fund - to account for all other monies related to capital expenditures of the County’s governmental funds.

COPS Bond Projects Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 2003 Certificate of Participation Bond issue and the related capital
expenditures.

COPS Morgue Project Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 1994 Certificate of Participation Bond issue and the related capital

expenditures for the construction of a morgue / forensic science center.
Community Greenspace Program Fund - to account for monies donated for green space acquisitions within the County.

Public Safety and Judicial Facilities Autherity Projects Fund - to account for the proceeds of the 2004 Revenue Bond issue and the related
capital projects for purchase and renovation of various buildings for the Public Safety Department.

Buiiding Authority Juvenile Court Project Fung - to account for the proceeds of the 2003 and 2005 Revenue Bonds and the related expenditures
for the construction of a juvenile court facility for the County.



ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Due rarn other governments
Total assets
LIABILITI FUND SALANCE
Liabilities’
Accounts and contracts payable
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities
Fund balance.
Reserved
Unreserved
Totat fund balance
Total liabilites and fund batances

DeKalb County, Geargia

Nonmajor Capital Project Funds

Comixring Balance Sheet

Cetember 31, 2005

{in thousands of dollars}

Pubhic Safety

Judicial Buiiding
Health HOST Capial COPS CCPS Coammunity Facittes Authorty Total Nenmajor
1587 Parks Jat Faciles 2001 Parks Capital Imprevement Bond Morgue Greenspace Autherity Juvenile Capuat Project
Bonds Bonds. Bonds Boruds Projects Projects Projecls. Prgject Program Projects Courl Project Funds

1 160 $ 2.281 H 10 5 5389 3 10,939 § 38623 $ 13284 $ 1 $ 32 28,176 31,879 $ 179,176
- - - 433 $ 2 697 - - $ : - - 2,825

180 2&91:: 110 53,601 11.072 41,315 13.284 1 ggl: 23&6‘ 31,875 182,001
- - - 127 241 1,812 1 B - 100 173 2,454
. - . - - 696 - - - - - 636
- - - 127 241 2,508 1 - - 100 173 3.15¢
- - - 2,344 2579 1.306 273 - 1 965 23732 2

160 2,281 110 51,220 8,252 37,501 13.010 1 N 27,111 5,574 145651

160 2.281 110 53,564 10.831 38,807 13,283 1 32 28.07¢ 3,706 178,851

] 150 3 2281 8 110 $ 53,591 $ 11,072 $ 41315 $ 13284 3 t $ 32 28176 31,879 $ 182,001
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DeKalb County. Georgia
Monmajor Capital Project Funds
Comgnring Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes i Fung Balance
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

{in thousands of dollars )

Public Safety
Judicial Builcing
Health HOSY Capital COPS COPS Commumnty Facilities Authority Total Nonmagor
1987 Parks Jail Facilities 2001 Parks Capital improvement Bond Morgue Greenspace Authority Juveniie Capital Project

Revenues Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Projects Projects Projects Praject Program Projects Court Project Funds
Use of money and property 1 4 3 58 - 3 $ 1.771 3 299 $ - $ 2,293 1 - $ - 1 549 $ 454 § 5,441
Intergovernmental - - - 397 7.394 8,389 - - - - - 16,180
Miscellaneous - - - 531 - 752 - - - - - 1,283

Total revenues 4 B8 3 2,699 7.603 9,141 2,293 - - 549 454 22,904
Expenditures
Debt service - - - - 75 1,763 - - - - - 1828
Bond issuance costs - - - - - - - - - - 624 624
Capital outlay,

General government - - - - . 4,167 - - - - - 4,167

Pubhc safety - - - - - 54 B . - 2407 - 2461

Cwit and cniminal court system - 13 - - - - 1,546 - - - 6,686 B.245

Public works - - - - £.869 16,576 - - - - - 23.545

Parks and recrealion - - - 12,941 - 61 - - 2 - - 12,004

Health and welfare - - 55 - - - - - - - - 55

Total expenditures - 13 55 12,941 7,044 22821 1,548 - 2 2,407 7.310 $3.9339
£xcess (deficency) of revenues over

expenditires 4 55 (52) {10.242) 549 {13,480} 747 - 2) (1,858) (6,856} {31,035)
Other Finangy urces (Uses
ssuance of Debt - - - - . - - . - - 35670 35,670
Premium an band ssusnce - - - - - - - - - - 837 637
Transfers m - - - - 100 30.857 - - - - - 30,957
Transfers oul - - - - (1.972) - - - - - (1,274) {3.246)

Total ather financing sources (uses) - - - . {1.872} 30,857 - - - - 35,033 54,018
Net change in fund balance 4 55 (52) {10,242) (1.223) 17.377 747 . 2y (1,858} 28,177 32,983
Fund balance - begmnning 156 2,226 162 63,806 12,054 21,430 12.536 1 34 28,934 3,520 145 868

Fund balance - ending $ 160 3 2,281 5 10 $ 53564 3 10.831 S 38807 § 13283 3 1 3 32 $ 28,076 $ 31,706 $ 178,851




DeKalb County, Georgia

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

The following Noenmajor Enterprise Funds are used by the County:

DeKalb Peachtree Airport Fund - to account for the provision of airport services to the residents of the County. All activities
necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund.

Stormwater Utility Fund - to account for the provision of a Stormwater drainage system for residents of the County. All

activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund.
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable {net)
Due from other governments
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets {net)
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Other accrued liabilities

Advance payments and deposits

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences payable

Total liabilities

NET ASGETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted
Total net assets

DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

Statement of Net Assets

December 31, 2005

{(in thousands of doliars}
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DeKalb-
Peachtree Stormwater
Airport Utility Total
$ 6,882 3,760 10,642
115 1,065 1,180
1,222 - 1,222
8,218 4,825 13,044
48,658 355 49,013
56,877 5,180 62,057
568 124 692
41 - 41
7 - 7
616 124 740
90 - a0
706 124 830
48,658 3585 49013
7.513 4,701 12,214
$ 56,171 5,056 61,227




Qperating revenues:
Rental fees
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Supplies
Operating services and charges
Depreciation ang amortization
Total operating expenses

Qperating income

Nonoperating revenues:
Interest income

Income before capital donations and transfers
Capital donations

Transfers out

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

DeKalb County, Georgia
Nenmajor Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

{In thousands of dollars)

DeKalb-
Peachtree Stormwaler
Airpont Utility Tota!

3 3.631 $ - $ 3,631
2,614 - 2,814

- 16,873 16,873

2 - 2

6,247 16,873 23,120

1,170 - 1,170

295 2,551 2,846

934 10,768 11,702

508 - 508

2,908 13,318 16,227

3,339 3,554 6,893

180 340 520

3,519 3,894 7.413

3,370 - 3,370
- (9,748} (9,748}

65,889 {5,854) 1,035

49,282 10,910 60,182

$ 56,171 § 5.056 $ 61,227
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

DeKalb County, Georgia
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
(In theusands of dollars)

F76

Cash payments to employees for services
Other operating revenues
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to other funds
Net cash required by noncapitat financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Capital donations

Net cash required by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest o investments
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivatents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Change in assets and liabilities
{increase} decrease in receivables
Increase (decrease) in payables
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Noncash capftal donations

DeKalb-
Peachiree Stormwater
Airport Utility Total

$ 3,631 $ 16,553 20,184
(508} (14,267} (15.175)

(1,172) - (1,172)

1.853 - 1,853

3,404 2,286 5,690

- (9,748) (9,748)

- 9,748) {(8,748)

(2,999) {355) (3,354}

3,370 - 3,370

37t (358) 16

158 340 498

158 340 498
3,933 (7.477) (3,544)

2,949 11,237 14,186

6,882 3,760 10,642

3,339 3,554 6,883

509 - 509
(518) {320) (839)
73 {948} {875)

2 - 2

3.404 2.286 5,690

3 3.370 5 - 3,370

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



DeKalb County, Georgia
Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department to other departments of the County on a
cost reimbursement basis.

The following Internal Service Funds are maintained by the County:

Vehicle Maintenance Fund - to account for operations of the County's Vehicle Maintenance Department which maintains and repairs all of the
County's vehicles.

Vehicle Replacement Fund - to account for all purchases and dispositions aof the County's vehicles.

Risk Management Fund - to account for all of the County's risk management related revenues and expenditures. This includes unemployment

compensation insurance, group health and life insurance, general liability insurance, and worker's compensation insurance.
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories and prepaid items
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets (net)

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities;
Accounts payable
Claims and judgments payable, current portion
Otbligation under capital leases, current portion
Other accrued liabilities
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Claims and judgments payabie, long term portion
Obligation under capital leases, long term portion

Compensated absences payable
Total long-term liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted

Total net assels

DeKalb County, Georgia

Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Net Assets

December 31, 2005
(In thousands of doliars)
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Vehicle Vehicle Risk
Maintenance Replacement Managemenit Total

1,666 $ 49,478 $ 13,501 64,645

1,571 - 542 2,113

3,237 49,478 14,043 66,758

1,758 33,723 - 35,481

4,995 83,201 14,043 102,239

733 4,874 1,593 7,200

- - 7.575 7,575

- 2,366 - 2,366

261 - - 261

994 7,240 9,168 17,402

- - 4,148 4,148

- 3,136 - 3,136

6533 - - 633

633 3,136 4,148 7,917

1,627 10,376 13,316 25,319
1,758 28,500 - 30,258

1,610 44,325 727 46,662

3,368 $ 72,825 $ 727 76,920




DeKalb County, Georgia

internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Sataries and employee benefits
Supplies
Operating services and charges
Miscellaneous
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating Income (Loss)
Other income {expense):
Interest income

Interest expense

Loss on sale of capital assets

Loss before transfers

Change in net assets
Net assets (deficit) - beginning

Net assets (deficit) - ending

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
{In thousands of dollars)

Vehicle Vehicle Risk
Maintenance Replacement Management Totais

3 25,289 $ 21,793 $ 72,044 119,126
193 - - 193

371 32 - 403

25,853 21,825 72,044 119,722

7,790 - - 7,790

15,160 - - 15,160

1,801 2,803 66,646 71,250

500 - - 500

301 18,630 - 18,931

25,552 21,433 66,646 113,631

3 392 5398 6,081

- 1,388 - 1,388
- (146) - (146)
- {8,707) - {6,707)

301 (5,073} 5,398 626

301 (5,073) 5,398 626

3,067 77,898 (4,671) 76,294

$ 3,368 $ 72,825 3 727 76,920
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DeKalb County, Georgia

internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2005
(tn thousands of dollars)

Vehicle Vehicle Risk
Maintenance Replacement Management Totals
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers 3 25,782 § 21,793 § 72,044 S 119,619

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (17,988) {2,199} {67,305) {87,492)

Cash payments to emplaoyees for services {7.790} - - {7,790)
Net cash provided by operating activities 4 19,594 4,738 24,337
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (43) {14,729) - (14772}

Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 1,159 - 1,159

Capital Donations (71) - - (Cad)

Payments on leases - {2,466) - (2,466}
Net cash required by capital and related financing activities (114) (16,036) - {16,150)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest on investments - 1,388 - 1,388
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {110) 4,946 4,739 9,575
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,776 44,532 8,762 55,070
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,666 49,478 13,501 64,645

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) 301 392 5,398 6,091
Adjusiments to reconcile operating income (ioss) to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 301 18,630 - 18,931
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in inventories and prepaid expenses (510) - (15) {525)
Increase (decrease) in payahles {102) 572 (644) {174)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 14 - - 14

Net cash provided by operating activities 4 18,594 4,738 24,337




DeKalb County, Georgia

Agency Funds

Tax Commissioner - to account for all real, personal, intangible, and intangible recording taxes collected and forwarded to the County and other
governmental units.

Sheriff - to account for collection fees, proceeds from judicial sales, bond forfeitures, and cash bonds, which are disbursed to other elected officials and
agencies, the County, and individuals. The Sheriff also collects, maintains, and disburses monies for civil suits and minors per court order.

Seized Property - to account for monies seized by public safety during arrests. These monies are either returned to victims, the arrested party, or
forfeited to the County.

The following agency funds are used to account for fines, fees, and other monies collected by the courts and remitted to other parties in accordance with
court orders and state law:

Clerk of Superior Court Probate Court
State Court Magistrate Court
Juvenile Court State Court Probation
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TAX COMMISSIONER
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Taxes Recewvable
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

SHERIFF
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

CLERK SUPERIOR COURT
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES
Due to Cthers

TAT RT
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

JUYENILE COURT
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES

Due to Cihers

DeKailb County, Georgia

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Year Ended December 31, 2005

{In thousands of doflars)

Balance Balance
12/31/2004 Additions Deductions 12/31/2005
5 13.833 $ 916,058 911,382 $ 18,499

26,903 B35 146 692,102 29,947
3 40,736 $ 1.611,204 1,603,494 3 48,448
$ 40736 § 1611204 1,603.494 § 4B.448
$ 5,921 3 7,489 6,593 3 6,827
3 5921 3 7,499 6,593 $ 6,827
$ 5,936 b 54,340 39,180 3 21.006
$ 5,936 3 54 340 39.180 $ 21,008
3 944 $ 12,689 12,325 3 1,308
$ 944 3 12,689 12,325 3 1,308
$ 21 3 204 203 g 22
$ 21 5 204 203 3 22

PROBAT RT
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES
Due te Others

MAGISTRAT RT
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

TAT RTP TION
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES

Due to Others
| PROPERTY
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
LIABILITIES
Due to Others

TOTALS
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivaients
Taxes Receivable
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Due 1o Others
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Balance Balance
12/31/2004 Additions Deductions 12/31/2005
285 3 1,156 $ 1,121 $ 320
285 $ 1,156 $ 1,121 5 320
35 $ 1,188 $ 1,191 3 32
35 3 1,188 $ 1,191 $ 32
1,386 3 3.398 $ 2,929 3 1,855
1,386 $ 3,398 $ 2,929 $ 1,855
299 $ _2_3;": $ 236 5 287
299 $ 224 $ 236 $ 287
28,660 $ 986,756 $ 975,170 $ 50,246
26,903 595,146 692102 29,947
55,563 § 1,601,902 3 1667272 $ 80,193
55,563 $ 1,691,902 $ 1667272 $ B0.193




STATISTICAL SECTION



DeKalb County, Georgia

Statistical Section (Unaudited)

Statistical tables differ from financial statements because they usually cover more than one fiscal year and may present non-accounting data. These
tables reflect social and economic data, financial trends, and the fiscal capacity of the gavernment,
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DeKalb County, Georgia

Comments Relative to the Statistical Section

The following statistical tables that are recommended for inclusion by the Government Finance Officer's Association are not included for the reasons
stated below:

Special Assessment Collections - Last Ten Fiscal Years. (County has had no special assessments for the past ten years related to any debt for which
the County is obligated in some manner.)



DeKals County, Georgia
General Governmental Revenues By Source and Expenditures By Function

Laslt Ten Years
[in thousands of dollars)

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1939 1998 1897 1896
Revenues By Source:

Taxes $ 381,027 $356,629 $353,904 $318,758 %296 665 5282191 $265,955 5309.268 5264053 $226,554
Licenses and Permits 30,757 28,432 26,833 27,625 29,385 27,686 28,254 22,163 21,257 20,396
Use of Money and Property 8,075 2487 4,284 4,237 7.280 10,556 7,302 7,331 5211 5751
intergovernmental 63,057 46613 46,704 47,228 48,929 55,613 28,860 40,169 16,992 17,400
Fines and Forfeitures 31,429 33,674 29311 24,162 21,57 20,179 19,277 19156 18,474 17,838
Charges for Services 42 467 46,786 35,835 35,580 28,994 28,894 26,499 24191 22,053 21,900
Miscelianeous 7,296 8,043 6,742 4,262 5470 3,610 3,950 4,141 5,315 3,024

Total 5 564,108 $522,644 $503,612 $461,850 $438,294 $428,721 $380,101 $426,478 $354,355 $312,860

Expenditures By Functon:

General Government $ 58348 $ 60,197 $ 62,020 $ 55,368 § 51,968 $ 49,551 $ 45123 $ 41,220 $ 36957 $ 38,031
Publc Safety 155917 160,407 143,840 136,441 128107 118,265 114,840 103,288 93282 88,625
Civit and Criminat Court System 115828 115,295 109,274 101,229 97,039 91,326 82810 73,481 66,188 60,436
Planning 1,688 1,664 1,568 1,341 1.750 1,923 2,234 1,820 1,543 1,543
Public Works 40,162 40,858 43,608 41,167 38,346 42,452 30,083 42,757 26,075 24,430
Community Development 13.457 12,928 9,443 8,094 8,642 7.361 8183 5,839 6,225 6,027
Parks and Recreation 18,931 18,433 17,697 19,678 18,245 16,562 15,722 14,835 14,166 13,247
Library 11,446 11,004 10,628 10071 10,171 8525 1,377 6,963 6,663 6,106
Heaith and Welfare 34127 3380 33,960 33526 26,596 25,187 25716 25830 19,032 2315870
Mescellaneous 20,766 15,650 11,738 10,294 2,638 7.569 10,618 7,664 7,048 8730
Debt Service 32,899 30,051 35,362 34,112 27.201 26,201 21,418 19,628 15,838 20,188
Capilal Qutlays 51,477 181,517 71.934 46,650 42,148 16,473 28,544 30,270 14,709 5,239

Total $ 555,154 $601,808 $551,370 $497,812 £459,867 $412,002 $392.648 $373 865 §$312.127 $300,672

General governmental revenues and expendilures inciude !l revenues and expenditures of govemmental fund types. Transfers to or from other funds are not included.

Source: DeKalb County Finance Department



Water and Sewerage System Fund.
Operating revenues
Operating expenses

Operating income

Sanitation Fund:
Operating revenues
Operating expenses

Operating income

DeKalb-Peachtree Arport Fund:
Operating revenues
QOperating expenses

QOperating ncome (loss)

Stormwater Utility Fund:
Operating revenues
Operating expenses

Operating income (loss}

Source DeKaib County Finance Oepartment

DeKalp County. Georgia

Operating Revenues, Expenses, and Income of Enterpnse Funds

Last Ten Years

{In thousands cf dollars)

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
§ 110082  §115350  $120.398  $108013 5100828  $11105¢  $103633  § 096882  § 83,634  § 82,049
107,074 100,230 93.181 80,195 84.480 78,306 71,600 65,224 62,838 61,805
$ 12008  $ 15120  § 27217 § 28B18  § 25448 5§ 32748 § 32033 §$ 21,658  § 20796  § 20,244
§ 57067  § 5B405 5 52506 § 549834 5 46374 5 41545  § 41277  §$38202 5 37971 § 34178
55,321 42,980 45,397 46,718 40,125 38,268 40,584 33,525 31,865 33,508
$ 1746  $ 15425 5 6109 5 B216 5 6249 85 3277 0§ 693§ 4677 0§ 6108 2§ 6T
$ 6247 § 3178 § 2766 § 2808 5 2625 § 2509 § 285 0§ 2180 3 208 5 1,950
2908 2747 2774 2.583 2429 2,250 2,150 2,059 1,863 2174
$ 333§ 431§ (5 § 225 5 486 § 25 0§ 705 § 101§ 233 § (229)
$ 16873 § 16683 S -
13,319 5038 597
$ 3554 § 1185 §  (59T)




DeKatb County, Georgia
Properly Tax Rates and Levies

Last Ten Years

Property Tax Rates Per $1,0G0 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 14993 1998 1987 1896
Real and Personal Froperty: '
County:
Genera 8.21 8.31 873 803 5.65 9.01 638 6.46 8.44 8.19

Special tax distnct-
designated services:

Avondale 2.05 2.89 276 3.49 4.29 172 4.02 237 238 234
Chamblee 0.83 117 112 1.42 1.74 1.51 1.64 096 097 085
Clarkston 173 244 233 2.94 362 3.4 340 2,00 201 198
Decatur 1.09 153 1.47 1.85 228 1.98 2.4 1.26 1.26 1.24
Doraville 1.18 1.62 1.56 1.96 241 209 2.27 1.33 1.34 1.32
Lithonia 179 253 242 3.05 375 3.26 153 207 2.08 205
Pine Lake 2.05 289 276 349 4.29 72 4.03 237 2.38 234
Stone Mountain 1.54 217 297 2.62 321 279 3.02 1.78 1,78 1.76
Unincorporaled 255 269 278 2.94 4.20 1.96 383 3.05 2.60 271
Hospital services 0.98 0.88 092 1.05 1,30 1.30 1.08 1.7% 1.25 1.80
Fire protection 243 2.30 1.99 23 243 1.44 273 2.54 260 280
Bond retirernent and interest 1.31 1.30 1.18 1.25 1.45 0.97 1.07 1.09 1.29 1.33
Totat County * 15.48 15.48 15.58 15.58 15.03 14,68 15.18 14.93 16,18 18.63

* The totat County mikage rate shown above 1s for the unincorporated porion of the County which compnses ovar B8% of the total County.

Property Tax Lewies (In thousands

of dollars)
Real and Persona! Property:
County:
General § 112450 $103.863 £102,320 $ 74383 5 44444 $ 85870 $ 43828 $ 72,229 5 86574 § 79,374
Special tax district-
designated services 31373 30,762 29,291 25,130 30,288 13,943 25124 31,182 24 860 24,228
Hospital services 13,423 10,929 10,730 9,728 10,226 9,504 7,511 20,017 12,822 17,445
Fire protection 30,704 26,656 21,463 19,963 17,961 5,940 17,906 26,620 25,658 23,733
Bond retirement and interest 25775 24,041 20,806 21,035 22 508 14,319 14,242 13,492 14,732 14,430
Total County $ 213,725 $196.221 $184.616 $150,249 £125427 5113576 $108.811 $163,550 $153,886 $159,211

{continuad)

Source: DeKalb County Finance Department



Property Tax Lewies (continued)
{in thousands of dollars}
Pubiic Utities:

County:
General
Special tax distnct-
designaled services

Hospital services

Fire prolection

Bong retirgment and interest
Total County

Motor Vehide and Mobile Homes:
County.
General
Special tax districl-
designated serwces
Hospital services
Fire protection
Bond retirement and interest
Tetal County

Total County Property Tax Levies

Source: DeKalb County Finance Depariment

DeKalb County, Georgia

Property Tax Rales and Lewies (continued)

Last Ten Years

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1993 1698 1887 1996

3 3.937 5 38686 § 4.168 5 2389 $ 2492 & 3745 § 2775 $ 2,507 $ 3318 $ 3,204
1.042 1,086 1,106 1.085 1,543 151 1,534 1.030 902 942

470 411 438 443 573 540 475 695 491 724

1,025 943 812 857 910 520 1.087 ag7 827 93¢

563 535 503 475 575 403 467 423 507 535

$ 7,037 $ 6.865 $ 7.028 $ 5249 $ 6,093 $ 5960 § 6338 § 5552 $ 5,145 § 6425
§ 11,467 $ 12,295 $ 11,599 5 9114 $ 14.243 $ 10181 $ 8753 $ 10,529 $ 11,385 5 8461
3490 3,708 4,280 6.040 3,294 5.769 3.861 3,148 3,500 3.742
1.218 1,312 1.760 2.02% 2,087 1,785 2.425 1,651 2,468 2,365
2.964 2.664 3617 3,524 2319 4,042 3,256 3,118 3,397 3,261

1,691 1,608 1,987 2.145 1,486 1.697 1477 1,621 1,837 1,738

$ 2080 $ 21587 § 23,643 § 22.848 § 23.429 $ 23474 3 18,772 $ 20,068 § 22,597 $ 19,764
$ 241583 §224,673 $215.287 $178,346 $154,949 $143.010 $134.721 $185.170 $192,628 $185.400

S6



DeKalb County, Georgia

Property Tax Levies and Collections
(County Porion Ontly)

Last Ten Years
{In thousands of dollars)

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1698 1857 15896
Total Tax Levy $ 241,593 $224,673 $215,287 $178,346 $154,949 $143010 £134,721 $189,170 5192,628 $ 185,400
Collestion of Curent Years'

Taxes Dunng Year 3 230053 $215,878 $203 674 $172,814 5154 249 $135,208 $131,593 $185 728 $187,884 $161,337
Percentage of Levy Collected

During Year 95.22% 96.09% 94 61% 96.90% 99.55% 94.54% 97 68% 98.18% 97 .58% 97.81%
Coilection of Prior Years'

Taxes During Year $ 7,198 $ 6643 § 7676 5 6729 5 6512 5 5483 § 6,223 $ 4,537 $ 4187 $ 7.235
Total Coliections $§ 237,252 $222,521 $211,350 $179,543 $160,761 $140,668 $137.816 $190 265 $192,151 5188572
Percentage of Total Collections

to Tax Levy 98.20% 99.04% 98.17% 100.67% 103.75% 98.38% 102.30% 100 S8% 99.75% 101.71%
Accumulated Delinquent Taxes s 9,275 $ 8,167 $ 10134 5 7,404 § 8,085 § 9717 § 6316 $ 5878 $ 6,137 § 5788
Percentage of Accurmulated

Delnquent Taxes to Current

Years' Tax Levy 3.84% 3.64% 4.71% 4.15% 5.22% §.79% 4.69% 3 11% 3.19% 3.12%

Source: DeKalb County Finance Department, DeKalb County Tax Commussioner
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CeKaib Counly. Georgia

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Properly

Last Ten Years

{in mihons of dollars)

S8

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1995 1998 1987 1996
General Purposes and Bond Retirement.
Real property.
Assessed valve 5 13952 5 18728 $ 17.636 § 15545 $ 15135 $ 13.565 § 12,033 11,118 $ 10,168 $ 9674
Estimated market value 49,880 46.820 44,090 41,383 37,638 33,913 30.083 27.795 25420 24,185
Personal property:
Assessed value 1,752 1.686 1.763 1.850 1.816 1,806 1,825 1,881 1771 1855
Estmated market value 4.380 4,215 4,408 4,625 4,790 4515 4,563 4,703 4,428 4,138
Matar vefucle and mabide homes:
Assessed value 1,378 1,438 1,513 1.509 1,489 1,750 1,355 723 1,318 1.213
Estimated market value 3,445 3.598 3,783 3.773 3,723 4,375 3.388 1,808 3,285 3033
Privately owned public utibhes:
Assessed value 458 477 424 441 416 419 436 388 393 411
Estimated market value 1,145 1,193 1,060 1,103 4,040 1,048 1.080 970 983 1.028
Total value for bond relirement
(gross):
Assessed value 5 23540 § 22.330 $ 21,336 § 20.345 $ 18,956 $ 17,540 § 15649 3 14,110 $§ 13,650 $ 12,953
Estrmated market value 3 58,850 3 55826 $ 53.341 5 50.864 $ 47391 $ 43,851 5 39,124 $ 35276 $ 34.126 $ 32,384
Ratio of Total Assessed Value lo
Totat Estimated Markel Value G.4 0.4 Q.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4
Homestead Exemption s 1,833 $ 1.534 § 1489 § 1,452 S 1407 § 1,353 $ 1313 $ 1,336 $ 1,308 § 1310
Freeport Exemption 5 288 5 240 $ 265 5 258 3 281 5 262 5 294 $ 385 3 327 5 326
Net Assessed Value for General
Purpcses S  2t418 $ 20,556 $ 19,572 $ 18.634 $ 17 268 $ 15,895 $ 14042 § 12409 $ 12.014 $ 11317

Nole: Assessments are made as of January 1 of each year.
Source: DeKalt County Finance Department; DeKalb County Preperty Appraisal Depariment



DeKalb County, Georgia
Total Property Tax Rates - All Direct and Overlapping Gevernments
Per $1,000 Assessed Value

Last Ten Years

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1599 1898 1897 1996
DeKalb County 3871 B 3481 37.8% 37.26 3716 37,91 37 66 40.16 41.51
Atlanta 41.27 4210 4380 43.99 3885 46.22 45.05 46.86 48.42 50.09
Decatur 42.25 4338 43.44 43.77 40.35 42.26 44.41 45.95 48.09 54.31
Avondale 47.53 48.02 48.06 48 29 4725 49.42 49.51 48.48 51.44 52.64
Chamblee 41.32 40.63 42.82 3877 38.21 40.72 40.62 40.57 4353 4475
Clarkston 48.22 42.38 42.38 42.20 41.24 43.94 4338 42.61 45.57 46.78
Lithonia 48.98 49.56 50,30 48 87 48.21 50.46 45.51 48.68 51.64 5285
Doraville 44.14 44 95 46.81 42.80 41.37 43.79 42.25 41.94 44.90 46.12
Pine Lake 52.02 52.72 52.88 5283 54.75 5982 47.01 46 58 50.94 §3.14
Stone Mountain 45.03 46.50 47 81 46.96 43.67 4589 4500 44 39 47.34 48.56

Note: Total property tax rates include the taxes for general Counly government, schouls, the Slate, and any addiional taxes levied by the respective cries All of the above are assessed at 40%
of fair market value except Decatur and Doraviile at 50%. No street ights are incluged in the above rates,

Source: DeKalb County Finance Department



Population {in thousangs)
Assessed Value (in melions of dollars)

Sross Bonded Sebt (i thousands
of dollars)

Less Reserve for General Bond Debt
Service (In thousands of dollars)

Net Bonded Debt {in thousands
of dollars}y

Rato of Net Bonded Debt to
Assessed Vake

Met Bonded Debt Per Capita

General Governmental Expenditures”®

Debl Service Expendriures for
General Bonded Debt™

Ratio (%) of Debt Service
Expanditures to Geaeral

Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita

DeKalb County, Georgia

Ralio of Net General Bonded Debt to

Lasl Ten Years

310

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1696
701 £95 691 686 675 666 £10 598 594 590
$ 23540 § 22.330 § 21,336 $ 20.345 3 18,956 § 17.540 $ 15,649 $ 14110 $ 13,650 § 12,953
_— e
$ 218,865 $234,500 $250,345 $267.640 $282,275 $168,335 $175,920 $183.360 $ 188,620 $185,510
15678 13.182 10.814 14 876 17.610 12,979 12,618 12,861 13.148 12,770
§ 203.187 $221.318 $239,531 $252.66¢ $264.665 $155,356 $163,302 $170,499 $175,472 5182.740
0.0086 0.0059 G0112 0.0124 0.0140 0.0089 00104 0.0121 0.0128 0.0141
$ 29006 5 318.44 $ 346.64 3 358.31 5 392.40 $ 233.27 $ 267.71 $ 284.64 § 29541 $ 30873
Source: DeKalb County Planning Depariment, DeKall: County Finance Department; DeKalb County Property Appraisal Deparirnent
DeKals County, Georgia
Ratio of Annual Debl Service For General Bended Debt
To Total General Expenditures
Last Ten Years
(Irt thousands of dollars)
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1989 1998 1897 1996
S 555,154 $601,806 $551.370 $497 812 $458.867 $412,002 5392 648 $373.865 $312,127 $300,672
$ 2625 $ 26140 $ 28,495 § 28,318 § 20.866 $ 17,029 $ 17177 $ 17,306 $ 17.454 § 17,443
4.71% 4.34% 5.17% 5.69% 4.54% 4.13% 4.37% 4.63% 5.59% 5.80%

Govemnmental Expenditures

* includes all expenditures by govemmental fund types. Transfers to other funds are not included.

** Includes all governmental funds general obigation bond expenditures.

Source: DeKap County Finance Department



DeKalb County, Georgia
Computation of Legal Debt Margin

December 31, 2005
{In thousands of dollars)

Assessed Value $ 23,540,000
Debt Limit - 10% of assessed value 2,354,000
Amount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limit:
Totat bonded debt $ B08,365
Less:
General obligation bonds fund balance 5 15,678
Governmental activities revenue bonds 98,600
Water and sewerage system revenue bonds 490,900 605,178
Total debt applicable to debt imit 203,187
Legal Debt Margin $ 2,150,813

NOTE: The constitutional debt limit for general obligation tax bonds which may be issued by the Commissioners of DeKalb County
is 10% of the assessed valuation of taxable property within the County.

Source: DeKalb County Finance Department

DeKalb County, Georgia
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt

December 31, 2005
(In thousands of dollars)

Gross Debt Percentage DeKalb
Less Debt Debt County's
Retirerment Applicable to Share
Funds DeKalb County of Debt
DeKalb County $§ 203,187 100.00% $ 203,187
Overlapping Debt:
City of Atlanta (A) 283,865 2.60% 7,380
Fulton-DeKaib Hospital Authority (B} 248,970 28.34% 73,048
Total Overlapping Debt 532,835 80,428
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 736,022 283,615
Totat Direct and Overiapping Debt Per Capita ) 404.88

(A) Debt overlaps only property in the County which lies within ¢ity limits of Atlanta.
(B) Debt overlaps Countywide. These bonds are a closed fien on a limited tax contracted to be levied by Fullon and DeKalb
Counties. The Authority has no power {o levy taxes.

Source: DeKalb County Finance Department, City of Aflanta; Fuiton-CeKaib Hospital Authority S11
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DekKalb County, Georgia
Water and Sewerage System
Schedule of Revenue Bond Coverage

Last Ten Years
(In thousands of dollars)

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
Net Operating Revenue as Defined
in Bond Resolution* $ 60,269 $ 46,915 $ 48,584 $ 45,132 $ 47,180 $ 52,878 $ 49313 $ 40,511 $ 38,430 $ 38,397
Current Annual Debt Service
Requirement $ 32110 $ 31,500 $ 31,474 $ 29,993 $ 29,993 $ 29,995 $ 15215 $ 13,304 $ 13,304 $ 13.618
Ratio 1.88 1.49 1.54 1,50 1.57 1.76 3.24 3.05 2.89 2.82

* Net Operating Revenue = Collected revenues (cash basis revenues including interest earned on operating funds, renewai and extension funds, and fully reserved sinking funds), less
accrued expenses.

Source: DeKalb County Finance Department

DeKalb County, Georgia

Property Value, Construction Activity, and Bank Deposits

Last Ten Years

‘ - ¢ - 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

Property Value (In millions of dollars) $ 58,850 $ 55,826 $ 53,341 $ 50,864 $ 47,391 $ 43,851 $ 39.124 $ 35,276 $ 34,126 $ 32,384

Construction Permits 10,923 9,115 8,785 9,283 10,051 9,530 9,331 9,363 7,159 6,361

E Construction Value (In millions of dollars_$ 1,582 $ 1,754 $ 1,312 $ 1831 $ 2,601 $ 1,644 $ 1436 $ 984 $ 825 $ 690

Bank Deposits (In millions of dollars) $ 8.711 $ 8223 $ 8,553 $ 7916 $ 7876 $ 11,107 $ 8,392 $ 8,186 $ 8390 $ 6,590

* Bank depaosits are for fiscal years ending June 30 of the respective years.

Source: DeKalb County Development Department and Federai Reserve Bank



Chief Executive Officer - Vernon Jones

DeKalb County, Georgia

Salaries and Bonds of Principal Officials

Year Ended December 31, 2005

Board of Commissioners - Elaine C. Boyer; Burrell Ellis; Kathie Gannon; Henry C. "Hank" Johnson, Jr.; Larry Johnson;

Connie Stokes; Gale A. Walldorff
Clerk of Superior Court - Linda Carter
Probate Court Judge - J. Rosh
Sheriff - Thomas E. Brown, Jr.

Tax Commissioner - Thomas R. Scott

The following officials and all other County employees are covered by a blanket $200,000 bond, as required:
State Court Judges - Alvin T. Wong; Johnny Panos; Barbara Mobley; Janis Gordon; Jose A. DelCampo; Wayne M. Purdom; Edward E. Carriere

Solicitor State Court - Shawn LaGrua

District Attorney - Gwendolyn Keyes Fleming
Superior Court Judges - Gregory Adams; Clarence F. Seeliger; Daniel M. Coursey, Jr.; Michael E. Hancock; Gail C. Flake;

Robert J. Castellani; Linda W. Hunter; Mark Scott; Anne Workman; Cynthia J. Becker

Juvenile Court Judges - Elliot Shoenthal; Desiree Peagler
Magistrate Court Judges - Charles D. Wood; Winston P. Bethel; R. Hopkins Kidd

Source: DeKalb County Finance Department

Bell South

GA-Perimeter Center LLC

Georgia Power

General Motors

Perimeter Mall LLC

Post Apartment Homes LP

Hewlett Packard Co

Stone Mountain Industrial Park

Koger Ravinia LLC

Highwoods/Forsyth LTD
Total

Total County

DeKalb County, Georgia

Principal Taxpayers For 2005

Total Assessed
Type of Valuation Valuation
Business (In thousands) {In thousands)
Utility $ 680,932 $ 252,285
Investment 371,641 148,656
Utitity 325,494 120,596
Industrial 328,319 106,400
Retail 164,145 65,658
Developer 171,561 68,625
Retail 134,998 53,378
Developer 115,983 46,393
Developer 100,609 40,244
Developer 105,133 42,053
$ 2,498,815 $ 944,288
$ 58,850,000 $ 23,540,000

Source: DeKalb County Finance Department; DeKalb County Property Appraisal Department

STATUTORY STATUTORY
BOND SALARY

$ 50,000 $ 144,491
10,000 36,123-37,323
25,000 109,342
100,000 122,818
25,000 117,845
100,000 118,576
130,042
130,042
135,099
144,491
130,042

Ratio of Assessed

Valuation to Total

96,532-108,368

County Assessed Tax Paid
Valuation (In thousands)
1.07% $ 9,607
0.63% 6,046
0.51% 4,642
0.45% 4,424
0.28% 2,833
0.29% 2,550
0.23% 1,995
0.20% 1,841
0.17% 1,723
0.18% 1,652
4.01% $ 37,313

$13



DeKalb County, Georgia
Insurance In Force

December 31, 2005

Coverage
Buildings, Contents, Records, Equipment:

Fire, lightning, extended coverage, vandalism, and malicious mischief (blanket coverage \ replacement cost $250,000 deductible) per occurrence -

All risk marine floater (specified property, equipment, and records) )
Boiler and machinery - each occurrence (specified location and equipment exclusions) $10,000 deductible
Aircraft:

Rotocraft Liability (per occurrence) - Hull coverage (deductible-5% of insured value)

Owner, Landliords, & Tenants - DeKalb-Peachtree Airport

Money and Securities (destruction, disappearance, wrongful abstraction) $10,000 deductible
Employee Faithful Performance Blanket Position Bond

Excess Workers' Compensation - per loss (self-insured retentions $500,000)

Group Life - 2.25 times annual salary

Group Hospital and Surgery - employee and dependents:

Major medical (70%-80% of expenses after $200 deductible up to $1,500 out of pocket then 100%). Optional HMO's available
Umbrelia - $1,000,000 deductible

Source: DeKalb County Finance Department

DeKalb County, Georgia

Demographic Statistics
Schoot Enroliment (Source: DeKalb County School Board)

Unemployment Rate (Source: State Department of Labor)

S14

Limits

Scheduled Property
Scheduled Property

$25,000,000

$ 5,000,000

$ 5,000,000

$ 200,000

$ 100,000

$10,000,000
Schedule w

Unlimited
$ 5,000,000

102,310

6.10%

Population (Source: DeKalb County Planning Department):

Major Employers (Source: DeKalb County Planning Department).

1900 21,112 Emory University & Hospital

1910 27,881 DeKalb County Schools

1920 44,051 DeKalb County Government

1930 70,378 U.S. Centers for Disease Control & Prevention
1940 86,942 General Motors Corporation (Doraville)
1950 136,395 DeKalb Medical Center

1960 256,782 Children's Healthcare of Atlanta

1970 415,387 Veteran's Administration Hospital

1980 483,024

1990 545,837

2000 665,865

2004 695,100

2005 700,500

14,700
13,727
7.400
5,089
3,100
3,000
2,100
2,000



DeKalb County was created by Legislative Act in 1823.

Form of Government: A Chief Executive Officer and a Board of

Commissioners consisting of seven members
Area in square miles

Miles of paved roads
Miles of unpaved roads

Business licenses issued

Building permits:
Issued during year
Number of inspections made

Fire and EMS protection:
Number of stations
Number of training academies
Number of fire employee positions
Number of fire and EMS calls
Number of fire hydrants (including private hydrants)
Number of EMS employee positions

Police protection:
Number of police officers
Number of arrests

Recreation (County owned facilities):
Number of parks
Total acreage of parks
Number of swimming pools
Number of athletic fields ]
Number of recreation centers
Number of tennis centers
Number of tennis courts
Number of picnic shelters

Number of golf courses

DeKalb County, Georgia

270

2,746

21,390

9,039
29,875

25

641
98,995
15,200

208

1,056
54,686

130
5,948
12
158
11

105
90

Miscellaneous Statistical Information

Number of streetlights
Number of registered voters

County water system:
Daily average consumption - gallons
Plant capacity - gallons/day
Treated water storage capacity - galions
Raw water storage capacity - gallons
Water supply source
Miles of water mains
Miles of water mains constructed during year
Number of customers
Number of water meters

County sewer system:
Number of advanced treatment disposal plants
Number of pumping stations
Miles of sewers
Miles of sewers constructed during year
Sewer treatment capacity - galions/day

County sanitation:
Number of employee positions
Number of residential customers
Number of commercial customers
Number of weekly pickups

County airport:
Number of employee positions
Number of flights (take-offs and landings) during year
Number of planes based

Number of County employees:
Full-time positions
Part-time / temporary positions
Total number of positions

39,884

388,993

72,340,000

128,000,000

67,500,000

1,000,000,000
Chattahoochee River

2,827

31

291,034

182,329

2

57

2,184

18
56,000,000

709
153,748
8,256

2

27
202,251
608

7,512
708

8,220

Source: DeKalb County Departments: Geographic Information Systems, Public Works-Roads & Drainage, Finance, Fire and Rescue, Police Services,
Parks and Recreation, Public Works - Transportation, Voter Registration, Public Works - Water & Sewer, Airport, Human Resources
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